
 City Council 

Agenda
City Hall 

225 Fifth Street 

Springfield, Oregon 97477 

541.726.3700 

Online at www.springfield-or.gov 

The meeting location is wheelchair-accessible.  For the hearing-impaired, an interpreter can be provided with 48 

hours’ notice prior to the meeting.  For meetings in the Council Meeting Room, a “Personal PA Receiver” for the 

hearing impaired is available, as well as an Induction Loop for the benefit of hearing aid users.     

To arrange for these services, call 541.726.3700.   

Meetings will end prior to 10:00 p.m. unless extended by a vote of the Council. 

All proceedings before the City Council are recorded. 

June 6, 2016 

_____________________________ 

6:00 p.m. Work Session 

Jesse Maine Room 

_____________________________ 

(Council work sessions are reserved for discussion between Council, staff and consultants; 

 therefore, Council will not receive public input during work sessions.  

Opportunities for public input are given during all regular Council meetings) 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___, 

Woodrow ___, and Pishioneri ___. 

1. City Manager Compensation 2016.

[Greta Utecht] (30 Minutes) 

2. Initiate Amendments to the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP),

Concurrent Amendment of the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan (Metro Plan), and

Amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code (SDC), for EWEB Water

Intake and Treatment Facilities in Glenwood.

[Greg Mott/Phil Farrington]        (15 Minutes)

ADJOURNMENT 

City Manager: 

Gino Grimaldi 

City Recorder: 

Amy Sowa 541.726.3700 

Mayor 
Christine Lundberg

City Council
Sean VanGordon, Ward 1 
Hillary Wylie, Ward 2 
Sheri Moore, Ward 3 
Dave Ralston, Ward 4 
Marilee Woodrow, Ward 5 
Joe Pishioneri, Ward 6 



Council Agenda 

June 6, 2016 

Page 2 

____________________________ 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 

Council Meeting Room 

_____________________________ 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___, 

Woodrow ___, and Pishioneri ___. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT 

1. Mayor’s Recognition

a. Volunteers in Medicine Proclamation.

[Mayor Lundberg] (05 Minutes) 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Claims

2. Minutes

a. April 25, 2016 – Work Session

b. May 2, 2016 – Regular Meeting

c. May 9, 2016 – Work Session

d. May 16, 2016 – Work Session

e. May 16, 2016 – Regular Meeting

3. Resolutions

a. RESOLUTION NO. 1 – A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT CITY PROJECT P31025; PINEHURST PUBLIC

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (PIP), S 55TH ST.

4. Ordinances

5. Other Routine Matters

a. Liquor License Application for Spring Garden Seafood Restaurant, Located at 215 Main Street,

Springfield, Oregon.

b. Liquor License Application for Prime Time Sports Bar & Grill, Located at 1360 Mohawk Blvd,

Springfield, Oregon.

c. Approve Adjusting the Salary of the City Manager by 3% Effective November 1, 2015.

MOTION: APPROVE/REJECT THE CONSENT CALENDAR 



Council Agenda 

June 6, 2016 

Page 3 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request to speak cards are available at both 

entrances.  Please present cards to City Recorder.  Speakers may not yield their time 

to others. 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE - Limited to 20 minutes.  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request 

to Speak cards are available at both entrances.  Please present cards 

to City Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 

COUNCIL RESPONSE 

CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS 

BIDS 

ORDINANCES 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL 

1. Committee Appointments

a. Planning Commission Appointments.

[Greg Mott] (05 Minutes) 

MOTION: RE-APPOINT/NOT RE-APPOINT TIM VOHS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSON 

WITH A TERM TO EXPIRE JUNE 6, 2020. 

MOTION:  APPOINT/NOT APPOINT GRACE BROWN TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

WITH A TERM TO EXPIRE JUNE 6, 2020. 

2. Business from Council

a. Committee Reports

b. Other Business

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 

1. Initiate Amendments to the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP),

Concurrent Amendment of the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan (Metro Plan), and

Amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code (SDC), for EWEB Water

Intake and Treatment Facilities in Glenwood.

[Greg Mott/Phil Farrington]        (10 Minutes)



Council Agenda 

June 6, 2016 

Page 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 2 – A RESOLUTION INITIATING AMENDMENTS TO THE EUGENE-

SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES PLAN, CONCURRENT 

AMENDMENT OF THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA GENERAL PLAN, AND 

AMENDMENTS TO THE GLENWOOD REFINEMENT PLAN AND SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT 

CODE FOR AN EWEB WATER INTAKE, TREATMENT FACILITY AND RELATED 

INFRASTRUCTURE IN GLENWOOD 

MOTION: ADOPT/NOT ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2. 

1. Other Business

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY 

ADJOURNMENT 

_____________________________ 

7:15 p.m. Executive Session 

(Estimated Time) 

Pursuant to ORS 192.502(1), ORS 40.225, ORS 192.660(2)(f), 

ORS 192.660(3) and ORS 192.502(9) 

Jesse Maine Room 

_____________________________ 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___, 

Woodrow ___, and Pishioneri ___. 

1. Labor Negotiations Update.

[Candace Steffen] (20 Minutes) 

ADJOURNMENT 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 6/6/2016 
 Meeting Type: Work Session/Reg. Mtg 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Greta Utecht, Human 

Resources Director 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3787 
 Estimated Time: 30 minutes/Consent 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and 
Innovative Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE: CITY MANAGER COMPENSATION 2016 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Work Session: Discuss City Manager Compensation 
Regular Meeting: Move to approve adjusting the salary of the City Manager by 3% 
effective November 1, 2015. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

According to City Manager Gino Grimaldi’s employment contract, each February 
the City’s Human Resources Department will average the percentages from four 
different index sources to determine what, if any, amount of salary or cost of living 
adjustment to recommend to the City Council.  In addition, Human Resources staff 
completed a survey of comparable agencies. Results of the survey and the average 
of the indices are attached and reflect the justification for a 3% salary adjustment 
for Mr. Grimaldi. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Council Briefing Memorandum of May 27, 2016. 
2. City Manager Compensation Survey April 2016 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The following table lists the indices used, and their overall average. 
 
 

Currently, Mr. Grimaldi’s total compensation package is 3.70% below the average 
of comparable agencies with no geographic differential calculations applied.  
(Geographic differential factors help us compare the cost of labor in another 
community or region and have been used in other recent market surveys, 
specifically those prepared for non-Union, SEIU, IAFF and AFSCME employee 
groups.)  
When the geographic differential factors are applied, Mr. Grimaldi’s total 
compensation package is approximately .94% below average.  If a 3.0% adjustment 
were made to his salary, it would result in a base salary of $157,959 and an overall 
increase of $5,260.  Based on the attached compensation survey, that adjustment 
would put his total compensation approximately .78% below average without 
geographic factoring and 1.90% above average with the geographic factors applied.  
Assuming any adjustment would be implemented June 1, retroactive costs to 
November 1 2014 would be $2,718 for a 3% adjustment.   
The City Manager recently received a very favorable performance review from the 
City Council and from those who report directly to him.  In addition, he has re-
structured the City Manager’s Office to better reflect and respond to the Council’s 
goals.  As a result of the reorganization, Mr. Grimaldi will have more direct reports, 
and more direct oversight of City-wide operations.  Given the financial analysis, 
combined with his excellent performance evaluation and greater work load 
expectations, staff recommends a 3% salary increase. 

Portland-Salem CPI-W for 2015 1.1 
Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment 2015 0 

Public Administrators National Index 2015 3.1 
Western & Oregon Officers/Executives 2015 3.2 

Average: 2.02% 

 



 

M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 5/31/2016  

To: Mayor and City Council COUNCIL 

From: Greta Utecht, Human Resources Director BRIEFING 

Subject: City Manager Compensation 2016 MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE:  According to City Manager Gino Grimaldi’s employment contract, each February the 
City’s Human Resources Department will average the percentages from four different index 
sources to determine what, if any, amount of salary or cost of living adjustment to recommend to 
the City Council.  In addition, Human Resources staff completed a survey of comparable 
agencies.  In light of this information, Human Resources staff proposes that Mr. Grimaldi be 
granted a 3% salary adjustment.   

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Provide Financially Responsible and Innovative Government Services 
Prior to 2012 when Mr. Grimaldi’s contract was changed, his salary was indexed to increases 
received by other employees.  By removing that link, the Council is able to evaluate the City 
Manager’s compensation package independently and not be influenced by what has been 
bargained or agreed to for other employees. 
BACKGROUND:   According to Gino Grimaldi’s employment contract, each February the 
City’s Human Resources Department will average the percentages from four different index 
sources to determine what, if any, amount of salary or cost of living adjustment to recommend to 
the City Council.   
 
The four indices that will be averaged are:  The CPI-W index for Portland-Salem; the cost of 
living index for Social Security benefits, the national salary index for public administrators and 
the Western Region officer/exempt executive index.  The following table lists those indices, and 
the overall average. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment 1 reflects the most recent compensation survey of other City Managers in similar 
sized Oregon cities and those agencies with which we compete for employees.   
 
Mr. Grimaldi’s performance evaluation is normally completed in November but due to the use 
of a different format, was not completed until April 2016.  Moving forward, the Council will 
perform Mr. Grimaldi’s evaluation in November, and his compensation will be reviewed the 
following February, in order to have the results from the above indices.  Any adjustments to his 
compensation will be retroactive to the preceding November.  In addition, any compensation 
adjustment will take his review and success in meeting Council goals into account. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi received a 2% salary adjustment for 2015.    

Portland-Salem CPI-W for 2014 1.1 
Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment 2014 0 

Public Administrators National Index 2014 3.1 
Western & Oregon Officers/Executives 2014 3.2 

Average: 2.02% 

Attachment 1 
Page 1 of 2 

 



   

 
Currently, Mr. Grimaldi’s total compensation package is 3.70% below the average of 
comparable agencies with no geographic differential calculations applied.  (Geographic 
differential factors help us compare the cost of labor in another community or region and have 
been used in other recent market surveys, specifically those prepared for non-Union, SEIU, 
IAFF and AFSCME employee groups.)  
When the geographic differential factors are applied, Mr. Grimaldi’s total compensation package 
is approximately .94% below average.  If a 3.0% adjustment were made to his salary, it would 
result in a base salary of $157,959 and an overall increase of $5,260.  Based on the attached 
compensation survey, that adjustment would put his total compensation approximately .78% 
below average without geographic factoring and 1.90% above average with the geographic 
factors applied.  Assuming any adjustment would be implemented June 1, retroactive costs to 
November 1 2014 would be $2,718 for a 3% adjustment.   
The City Manager recently received a very favorable performance review from the City Council 
and from those who report directly to him.  In addition, he has re-structured the City Manager’s 
Office to better reflect and respond to the Council’s goals.  As a result of the reorganization, Mr. 
Grimaldi will have more direct reports, and more direct oversight of City-wide operations.  
Given the financial analysis, combined with his excellent performance evaluation and greater 
work load expectations, staff recommends a 3% salary increase. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends that the City Council review the attached 
information, and consider a 3% salary adjustment retroactive to November 1, 2015.   

 



Population Salary as 
of 4/2016

Deferred 
Comp

Auto/IT 
Stipend

Other
6% 

PERS 
Pickup

TOTAL W/O 
GEO DIFF

TOTAL W/ 
GEO DIFF NOTES

Albany 51,670 $137,796 $18,602 $8,268 $164,666 $165,868 13.5% to deferred comp, 6% PERS;  CM chooses NOT to take $300 @ month car allowance.

Bend 78,280 $171,314 $4,560 $10,279 $186,153 $185,725
The City covers the deductible, $2000/individual $4000/family. If deductible not met, unused 
amount deposited in VEBA. $300 per/month car allowance $80 per/month cell phone: severance 
inc to 9 mths with 9 mths COBRA

Corvallis 57,390 $153,000 $9,180 $540 $10,537 $173,257 $171,472 DC now at 6%; goes to 8% on 11/1/2016

Eugene 159,190 $208,457 $27,000 $6,480 $8,017 $12,896 $262,850 $261,799 $500 /month car allowance  $40 /month cell phone; Other= ability to cash out 2 wks vacation.  
OPSRP - No 6% on deferred comp or vacation pay out.

Grants Pass 36,465 $133,780 $0 $0 $4,013 $8,268 $146,061 $151,129 VEBA - $234/mo ($2,808 Annually), all leave to accrue w/out limitation.

Gresham 107,065 $157,080 $6,000 $1,571 $9,425 $174,076 $161,925 Waived VEBA - gets 1% of annual salary ($130.92/month) as an additional allowance added to 
his $500/month car allowance thru Payroll

Hillsboro 97,368 $193,995 $11,760 $5,400 $3,880 $0 $215,035 $200,348
$375 /month car allowance and $75/month cell phone stipend. VEBA is 2% of base salary (in 
"other" column).  Deferred Comp contribution instead of PERS.  Medical is Kaiser composite 
rates. 10 paid days of Administrative leave + 2 personal days to be used as manager deems 
appropriate during the calendar year.  NO PERS PICK UP. 

Oregon City 33,940 $172,104 $6,024 $1,250 $6,354.61 $11,144 $196,877 $184,513
Salary linked to other department director COLAs & has merit pay component.  Merit pay for 2015 
was $8605. Def comp = 3.5% w/ EE match. Full cost of smart phone & monthly svc. HRA VEBA 
=1%; cash out of up to 7 days vacation.

Lake 
Oswego 36,770 $159,869 $7,993 $4,800 $10,360 $183,022 $169,515 $400 car allowance, 5% match deferred comp

Lane 
County $167,482 $16,748 $7,560 $6,442 $11,894 $210,126 $209,285 $6,720 car allowance,$840 data plan stipend; sell back of 80 hrs vacation; 

Medford 75,920 $145,008 $2,755 $6,780 $5,075 $9,273 $168,891 $171,627 Sick leave above 960 hrs contributed at 50% to HRA-VEBA acct. Severance  provides one month 
of salary for each year of service, up to 6 months

Tigard 50,000 $166,687 $8,334 $4,000 $1,960 $0 $180,982 $168,621

No PERS:  City contributes 11% of salary/year to 401A Retirement -- not shown, EE contributes 
$0 it is not a match to show the 11% as PERS Pick-up, only if you put the ER and EE PERS 
contribution in would it be an appropriate comparison. $1000 provided for purchase of addit life 
ins or long term care or both, 5% City Paid Deferred Comp, $50/Mo into City Paid VEBA, cell 
30/mo

Average $163,881 $10,840 $4,306 $4,664 $11,021 $188,500 $183,486

Springfield 
Current $153,358 $6,134 $6,100 $5,898 $10,289 $181,780 $181,780 Includes 4% deferred comp,  $1300 tech stipend, $4800 mileage. Other $5898 for 80 hrs floating 

holiday that can be sold or used as vacation time each year.  Does not accrue.

-3.70% Below average with no geographic differential calculations 
-0.94% Below average with geographic differential calculations 

Attachment 2 

Page 1 of 2



OPTIONS

Springfield 
with 1% 
Increase

$154,883 $6,195 $6,100 $5,957 $10,388 $183,523 $183,523 Annual total cost of increase = $1743; retro cost to Nov 2015 = $1016

-2.71% Below average with no geographic differential calculations 
0.02% Above average with geographic differential calculations 

Springfield 
w/ 2% 

Increase
$156,416 $6,257 $6,100 $6,016 $10,487 $185,276 $185,276 Annual total cost of increase = $3496; retro cost to Nov 2015 = $2039

-1.74% Below average with no geographic differential calculations 
0.97% Above average with geographic differential calculations 

Springfield 
w/ 3% 

Increase
$157,959 $6,318 $6,100 $6,075 $10,587 $187,040 $187,040 Annual total cost of increase = $5259; retro cost to Nov 2015 = $3068

-0.78% Below average with no geographic differential calculations 
1.90% Above average with geographic differential calculations 

Attachment 2 

Page 2 of 2



AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 6/6/2016 
 Meeting Type: Work Session/Reg. Mtg 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Greg Mott, Phil 

Farrington/DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3774 
 Estimated Time: 15 Minutes/10 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
CITY COUNCIL  

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and Innovative 
Government Services 

 
ITEM TITLE:  INITIATE AMENDMENTS TO THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA 

PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES PLAN (PFSP), CONCURRENT AMENDMENT OF 
THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA GENERAL PLAN (METRO PLAN), 
AND AMENDMENTS TO THE GLENWOOD REFINEMENT PLAN AND SPRINGFIELD 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (SDC), FOR EWEB WATER INTAKE AND TREATMENT 
FACILITIES IN GLENWOOD.  

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 
 

Work session: Receive a presentation from staff on the proposed project. 
 
Regular session: Adopt/not adopt the following resolution: A RESOLUTION INITIATING 
AMENDMENTS TO  THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA PUBLIC 
FACILITIES AND SERVICES PLAN, CONCURRENT AMENDMENT OF THE EUGENE-
SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA GENERAL PLAN, AND AMENDMENTS TO 
THE GLENWOOD REFINEMENT PLAN AND SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE 
FOR AN EWEB WATER INTAKE, TREATMENT FACILITY AND RELATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE IN GLENWOOD 
  

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB) plans to construct a water intake, treatment facility 
and associated improvements in Glenwood that requires amendments to the PFSP Project list 
and Map, as adopted into the Metro Plan, and corresponding changes to the Glenwood 
Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code to allow the proposed water facilities at 
the locations selected by EWEB.   

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1:   Council Briefing Memorandum 
Attachment #2:   Resolution 
Attachment #3:   Eugene, Lane County support of Plan amendment Initiation  
Attachment #4:   Illustrative Map 

DISCUSSION: 
 

EWEB’s planned water intake and treatment facility requires several land use applications 
including annexation, Site Plan Review, and zoning overlay development approvals, in 
addition to all of the various amendments described above under Item Title and Issue 
Statement.  The PFSP amendments will add the new facilities to the project list and map as 
required by state law. Statewide Planning Goal 11 requires that local governments have a 
“public facilities plan” for areas within the UGB describing the water, wastewater, and 
stormwater facilities necessary to support the land uses designated in their comprehensive 
plan.  Public Facilities and Services Plan amendments must meet participation provisions of 
PFSP Chapter VI, as well as the approval criteria for Metro Plan and refinement plan 
amendments in SDC 5.14-100 and 5.6-100, respectively.  
 
Initiation of a PFSP and Metro Plan amendment is solely by formal action of one of the 
governing bodies subject to the Metro Plan.  As the property is located within Springfield’s 
urban growth boundary and the other associated land use applications, including annexation, 
will be processed by the City of Springfield, it is appropriate for the Springfield City Council 
to initiate these amendments.  
 
Initiation is undertaken without bias or commitment to a specific outcome, including any 
subsequent appeals.  EWEB will produce the required land use applications and supporting 
materials and has already conferred with the City of Eugene and Lane County about the 
proposed water intake and treatment facility.  After initiating and once the applications for 
Plan and Code amendments are submitted, review packages will be forwarded to the planning 
commissions of the respective agencies for recommendations to Springfield, Eugene and Lane 
County elected officials for a final decision on the PFSP and Metro Plan amendments. 
Springfield and Lane County elected officials are responsible for final decision on proposed 
Glenwood Refinement Plan and SDC amendments.   

 



Eugene Water & Electric Board Water Intake/Treatment Facilities  Project Page 1 of 2 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                                         City of Springfield  

Date: May 23, 2016  

To: Gino Grimaldi, City Manager COUNCIL 

From: Anette Spickard, Development & Public Works Director  
Greg Mott, Planning Manager 
Philip Farrington, AICP, Senior Planner 

BRIEFING 
MEMORANDUM 

Subject: Proposed Metropolitan Area General Plan (Metro Plan), 
Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP), Glenwood 
Refinement Plan (GRP), and Springfield Development 
Code amendments for a Eugene Water & Electric Board 
water intake and treatment facilities project 

 

ISSUE:   
Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB) plans to construct a water intake, treatment facility and 
associated improvements in Glenwood that requires amendments to the PFSP Project list and Map, 
as adopted into the Metro Plan, and corresponding changes to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and 
Springfield Development Code to allow the proposed water facilities at the locations selected by 
EWEB.   

BACKGROUND:   
Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB) proposes developing a new water source below the 
confluence of the Middle and Coast Forks of the Willamette River with an intake, treatment facility and 
associated water infrastructure located in Glenwood, within the Springfield Urban Growth Boundary.  
 
This project necessitates a Type III Metro Plan amendment to amend the Public Facilities and 
Services Plan (PFSP) and approval by all three local governing bodies. Certain aspects of this project 
also require amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan (GRP) and Springfield Development 
Code (SDC), both of which require approval by the Springfield City Council and Lane County Board of 
Commissioners.   
 
The Resolution enclosed with this packet, which will be presented for Council review and action at the 
June 6, 2016 regular session, will initiate the Plan amendment process as required by the Metro Plan, 
and will enable EWEB to file the required applications. Since Springfield has land use planning 
jurisdiction over the entire Glenwood area, the Springfield City Council is the appropriate  governing 
body  to initiate the required Metro Plan and PFSP amendments. However, the Springfield City 
Council is the only governing body that may initiate amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan 
and Springfield Development Code.  Council work session(s) and public hearing(s) before planning 
commissions and elected officials of other participating  jurisdictions will be scheduled for later this 
year to review each of the proposed amendments. 
 
Currently, EWEB’s only source of drinking water is an intake off the McKenzie River with a treatment 
facility near Hayden Bridge in Springfield. Having a single water source presents significant risks to 
EWEB residential, business, and institutional water consumers from potential service disruptions due 
to equipment failure, hazardous spills within the river, and natural disasters. EWEB acquired a water 
right to surface water on the Willamette River below the confluence of the Middle and Coast Forks in 
an effort to diversify its water supply. EWEB has also acquired property for a river intake, and is 
proceeding to acquire additional property needed for the water treatment filtration plant and 
associated facilities (e.g., pumps, lab, transmission lines, etc). 
 
The facilities proposed are required to be included in the project lists and maps in the PFSP, which 
are adopted as part of the Metro Plan, but are physically located in the PFSP. Modifications to the 
GRP and to the Code are required to accommodate “high impact public utility facilities,” which are not 
currently allowed within the GRP’s Subarea D or the Employment Mixed Use zoning district.    
Subsequent to the Plan and Code amendments, the City will process applications by EWEB for 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 2



Eugene Water & Electric Board Water Intake/Treatment Facilities  Project Page 2 of 2 

Annexation, Site Plan Review, and several associated land use applications (i.e., Willamette 
Greenway Overlay District, Floodplain Development Overlay, Hillside Development Overlay District, 
and Tree Felling Permit). 
 
EWEB hopes to complete preliminary design and secure required plan amendments in 2016, with 
further permitting and final design extending between 2017-2019, construction between 2019-2021, 
and having the plant operational by 2021-2022. 
 

DISCUSSION:   
Policy 6.b.iii of the Metro Plan (p.IV-3) establishes that amendments to a “regional public facilities 
plan” is a Type III amendment to the Metro Plan. The Metro Plan’s Public Faciliites and Services 
Element states: “The project lists and maps in the Public Facilities and Services Plan are adopted as 
part of the Metro Plan.” (p. III-G-2).  When the PFSP was in development, the cities and the two 
principal water providers agreed that the information contained on the project lists and maps would  
include source, reservoirs, pump stations, and primary distribution systems, consistent with 
requirements in applicable Oregon Administrative Rules. Primary distribution systems are 
transmission lines 12 inches or larger for Springfield Utility Board (SUB) and 24 inches or larger for 
EWEB. (Chapter V, Glossary, at 37(a), page V-4, Metro Plan)   
 
Since the proposed EWEB project is not included among the PFSP’s table and map of proposed 
water projects, as required by the Metro Plan and state law, the PFSP amendment and allied Metro 
Plan amendment is warranted and necessary. 
 
SDC 5.14-125 refers to initiation of Metro Plan amendments. Subection C. allows Type III Metro Plan 
amendments to be “initiated at any time by Springfield, Eugene or Lane County.”  
 
The proposed location of the water intake and treatment facilities is within Subarea D of the GRP, 
adopted by the City and Lane County as a neighborhood refinement to the Metro Plan in 2012. 
Subsequently, the Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan District was incorporated into the Code as 
SDC 3.4-200. While the GRP and Code allow certain “low impact public utility facilities,” there is no 
provision for “high impact public utility facilities” within the subject site’s Employment Mixed Use 
zoning district. SDC 6.1-110 defines “high impact public utility facilities” as including the size and type 
of water facilities proposed by EWEB. Therefore, amendments to certain GRP text and to the table for 
allowed uses in the SDC for the Glenwood Plan District are warranted and necessary. 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Adoption of the attached Resolution at the Springfield City Council’s June 6, 2016 regular session is 
recommended based on the explanations provided under the Issue and Discussion sections of this 
memorandum. However, in the event the Council chooses not to initiate the Metro Plan and PFSP 
amendments, the City of Eugene or Lane County may proceed with this action as specified in the 
Metro Plan.   
Initation of the amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code is 
included in the Resolution and recommended based on the explanations provided under the Issue 
and Discussion sections of this memorandum.  

 

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-__ 
Page 1 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING AMENDMENTS TO THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA 
PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES PLAN, CONCURRENT AMENDMENT OF THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD 
METROPOLITAN AREA GENERAL PLAN, AND AMENDMENTS TO THE GLENWOOD REFINEMENT PLAN 
AND SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE FOR AN EWEB WATER INTAKE, TREATMENT FACILITY AND 

RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE IN GLENWOOD 
 

WHEREAS:  the Eugene Water and Electric Board (EWEB) intends to develop a water intake, pump 
station, storage facility, treatment facility with a source of supply from the Willamette River, 
transmission lines, and associated infrastructure facilities, in order to build redundancy into its water 
system; and  
 
WHEREAS: EWEB plans to locate these facilities in Glenwood, within the Springfield Urban Growth 
Boundary, and with the intake downstream of the confluence of the Middle and Coast Forks of the 
Willamette River; and  
 
WHEREAS: EWEB has met with planning staff of the City to understand:  what development standards 
will apply; what land uses regulations will apply; what changes may be needed to land use plans and 
regulations; the relevant procedures and standards for annexation; and other matters; and  
 
WHEREAS:  a facility of this magnitude should be shown in the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area 
Public Facilities and Services Plan (Public Facilities and Services Plan) tables and maps as required by 
applicable Oregon Administrative Rules; and  
 
WHEREAS:  an amendment to the Public Facilities and Services Plan is a “Type III” amendment to the 
Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan (Metro Plan), as described in Chapter IV of the 
Metro Plan, requiring approval by all three governing bodies; and  
 
WHEREAS: Chapter IV of the Metro Plan also provides a Type III amendment to the Public Facilities and 
Services Plan may be amended by any one of the governing bodies subject to the Metro Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS: Aspects of the project also require amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan (GRP) and 
Springfield Development Code (SDC) to accommodate high impact public utility facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS: SDC 5.6-105.B allows amendments to the GRP and the SDC text to also be initiated by the 
City Council;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City Council consents to EWEB filing with the City a Type III post-acknowledgment plan 
amendment application to amend the Metro Plan and the Public Facilities and Services Plan 
to include its proposed intake and treatment facilities; and  
 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-__ 
Page 2 

2. The City Council consents to EWEB filing with the City applications to amend the Glenwood 
Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code to accommodate high impact public 
utility facilities; and  

 
3. The City Council understands that EWEB will be responsible, as the applicant, for preparing 

application materials supporting these amendments;  any associated land use applications 
as may be required; all accompanying fees; and  

4.  The City Council hereby initiates processes allowing amendments to the Metro Plan and the 
Public Facilities and Services Plan, and to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and Springfield 
Development Code; however, by authorizing the initiation of these amendments, the City is 
not hereby making a decision with respect to the merits of the applications. 

 
Adopted by the Council of the City Springfield, Oregon, by a vote of ___ for and ___ against, this __ day 
of ________, 2016. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________   _______________________________ 
Amy Sowa      Mayor 
City Recorder 
 
 

Attachment 2, Page 2 of 2



Attachment 3, Page 1 of 2



Attachment 3, Page 2 of 2



I-5

FR
AN

KL
IN

 B
LV

D

Proposed EWEB
Treatment Plant Site

Proposed EWEB Pipeline
Intake to Treatment Plant

¯

Proposed EWEB Transmission Main to
Knickerbocker Bridge

EWEB Intake Site

Attachment 4, Page 1 of 1



 

 

 

Volunteers in Medicine Proclamation 

 
 

WHEREAS, Volunteers in Medicine opened their doors on February 1, 2001 and are now 

celebrating their 15 year anniversary; and 

 

WHEREAS, serving the health and wellness needs of the medically under-served in the greater 

Lane county area; and 

 

WHEREAS, providing access to primary health care, behavioral health services, assistance with 

prescription medications, laboratory services, women’s health care, and lifestyle counseling; and 

 

WHEREAS, those rendered invisible and excluded find open arms and hearts to reach out and 

include them with healing hands to touch their lives with love 

 

WHEREAS, annually, there are 5,633 patient visits, $1.45 million worth of prescriptions 

donated, and $411,988 worth of hours donated by volunteers; 

 

WHEREAS, by the end of this year Volunteers in Medicine will have provided 135,000 patient 

visits at no charge to the patients. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Christine L. Lundberg, Mayor of Springfield, Oregon, do hereby 

proclaim Friday, June 3, 2016 as  

 

Volunteers in Medicine Day 

 

In the City of Springfield, and encourage all citizens and businesses to join in the celebration 

thereof and to support efforts to promote the well-being and health of all citizens. 

 

Signed this 2
nd

 day of June 2016 

 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Christine L. Lundberg 

      Mayor 

 



AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 6/6/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Amy Sowa 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3700 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE:  

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 
By motion, approval of the attached minutes. 
 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

 
The attached minutes are submitted for Council approval. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Minutes: 
 

a. April 25, 2016 – Work Session 
b. May 2, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
c. May 9, 2016 – Work Session 
d. May 16, 2016 – Work Session 
e. May 16, 2016 – Regular Meeting 

 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

 
None. 
 
 

 
 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY APRIL 25, 2016 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday April 25, 2016 at 5:30 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors Wylie, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and Pishioneri. Also 
present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney Mary 
Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
Councilor VanGordon was absent (excused). 
 
1. Wastewater and Stormwater User Fees FY2016-17. 
 
Matt Stouder, Environmental Services Manager, and Katherine Bishop, Environmental Services 
Program Manager and presented the staff report on this item.   
 
User fees for local and regional wastewater and local stormwater are reviewed by the Council annually 
as part of the City’s budget development process. Staff is in the process of developing user fees for 
consideration and adoption by Council later this spring. The Metropolitan Wastewater Management 
Commission (MWMC) approved a schedule of Fiscal Year 2016-17 (FY 16-17) regional wastewater 
user charges on April 8, 2016 and will forward them to the cities of Springfield and Eugene for 
implementation. 
 
Each year, staff presents proposed user fee rates for local wastewater and stormwater programs to 
Council. These fees are established to provide adequate revenue to fund operations and maintenance, 
capital improvement programs, debt service payments, and meet environmental permit requirements 
for the City. In addition to local user fees, MWMC develops regional user fees to support the Regional 
Wastewater Program. On April 8, 2016, the MWMC adopted the FY 16-17 regional user fees with a 
2.0% rate change that will increase the typical residential customer’s monthly bill by $0.49. 
 
A public hearing on the option Council selects is scheduled for May 2, 2016. 
 
The revenue goals of MWMC are:  

1. Provide Adequate Operations and Maintenance 
2. Fund the Adopted Capital Improvements Program 
3. Maintain Debt Service Requirements  
4. Increase Capital Reserves; Defer Future Financing 
5. Maintain Fiscal Health and Favorable Credit Rating 

 
Mr. Stouder referred to a map showing the two systems within the City which includes wastewater and 
stormwater. A recent survey indicated that citizens value these systems and feel that maintaining 
healthy environment and rivers, protecting water quality, providing recreational opportunities and 
promoting economic development are all high priorities.  The challenges faced include fixed operating 
costs regardless of customer usage, large and continuing capital needs, cost inflation higher than the 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
April 25, 2016 
Page 2 
 
CPI, stringent environmental requirements, and debt service. Staff is expecting the new stormwater 
permit from Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) by the end of this year which will likely 
have more stringent requirements. 
 
Ms. Bishop explained the proposed rates for FY16-17.  She described the three scenarios being 
presented. In Springfield, the average residential customer is using about 50 gallons less per month 
from the prior year. Because our fee is usage based, we are seeing a decrease in revenue. Staff is 
recommending Option 2 which has a slightly higher increase on wastewater and a slight decrease on 
the stormwater compared to the forecast from last year. When the two city fees are combined, the rate 
is about 2.9%. Including the regional rate in that calculation brings it to an overall 2.5% increase. The 
options show the combined change to local wastewater (assuming 6.684 units or 5,000 gallons) and 
stormwater user fees for a typical residential customer: 
 

Option 1(basic service level) includes a 2.7% user fee rate increase in FY 16-17, resulting in a 
$0.94 monthly increase, which includes a local wastewater increase at $.44 and a stormwater 
increase at $0.50 monthly. 
 
Option 2 (Recommended) (basic service level with pay-as-you go financing plan) includes a 
2.9% user fee rate increase in FY 16-17 resulting in a $1.02 monthly increase, which includes 
a local wastewater increase at $0.54 and stormwater at $0.48 monthly, as discussed in 
Attachment 1. 
 
Option 3 (basic service level with greater level of pay-as-you go financing plan) includes a 
3.2% user fee rate increase in FY 16-17 resulting in a $1.13 monthly increase, which includes 
a local wastewater increase at $0.65 and stormwater at $0.48 monthly, as discussed in 
Attachment 1.   

 
Mr. Stouder noted some of the factors for local wastewater rates including a revenue bond, capital 
improvement plan, ongoing system operations and maintenance, and planning for the future.  He 
reviewed some of the projects completed since 2009, some of the current projects and future projects. 
 
Ms. Bishop reviewed a chart of rate comparison with neighboring communities showing current rates. 
Springfield is just below average. 
 
Councilor Ralston asked why Eugene and Springfield are at the same rate for wastewater. 
 
Ms. Bishop said the regional wastewater rate structure is applied to both cities. The City of Springfield 
benefits from having them applied the same. In the local fees, Eugene pays less because of economies 
of scale. Eugene has a lot of commercial and industrial that generates a lot of waste. 
 
Mr. Stouder said the cost to treat the waste is basically the same regardless of size. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said in looking at a ten-year span, it would cost the average customer $240 a year 
in increased costs. There may not be a way to avoid that, but was something to consider. 
 
Councilor Wylie said there have been no increases in social security for the last few years. They may 
need to look at holding the line for retired people who are not getting increases.  
 
Ms. Bishop said they have discussed that in the past, and can consider looking at in the future. It is a 
balance of meeting regulations and being sensitive to the needs of the community. They do have a 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
April 25, 2016 
Page 3 
 
reserve for unanticipated decreases due to closures of commercial and industry customers. There is 
some large growth that will help. 
 
Councilor Wylie said the government is supposed to be interactive between Federal and Local. We 
need to let the other levels of government know our customers can’t afford the rate increases. 
 
Councilor Ralston said if they don’t raise fees, another form of government would need to subsidize. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said part of what drives our wastewater system is that we have old pipes. They need 
to look at where those systems are located and check the laterals. Infiltration causes an increase in 
capital investments. Getting rid of leaks could help the system overall and create a more efficient 
system.  They need to determine what kind of emphasis to put on economic development and 
balancing a reserve if we lose a large company.  It’s important to look at how to keep the rates steady, 
look at other options and not increase the rates for residential customers. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said MWMC is looking at pipes from the curb to homes which are private 
property and the responsibility of the homeowner. They have looked at some programs where those 
can be tested. 
 
Mr. Stouder said they have looked at laterals, and received a recommendation from the consultant. 
They are in the data analysis period at this time. In some of the survey work done, they have found 
small increases annually rather than a spike after several years. The other way to fund these services is 
through system development charges (SDC). Gresham is low on rates, but high on SDCs. 
 
Mr. Stouder said in comparing Eugene and Springfield, Eugene has a larger base to spread the costs, 
and have no debt.  Springfield bonds paid for a number of rehabilitation and expansion projects.  
 
Ms. Bishop added that these projects expanded the capacity of our local wastewater system to be ready 
for future development. The City is well positioned from a capacity standpoint. Future projects are 
more for rehabilitation. 
 
Mr. Stouder said on the regional side, the federal regulations are becoming more stringent. MWMC is 
doing their best to mitigate and plan for that now. They are very concerned about how to fund some of 
those requirements.  The bonds have been paid off on the regional side, but not the local side. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked how staff tracks the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations. 
Council needs to track some of that so they can contact state and federal legislators. The EPA needs to 
allow some flexibility. 
 
Ms. Bishop noted the increases by other cities compared to the City of Springfield. Other communities 
are beginning to increase rates to address regulations. The rate drivers for wastewater rates and 
forecast include debt service requirements, investment of capital improvements, maintaining a strong 
financial position, and inflation. 
 
Mr. Stouder spoke regarding local stormwater rate factors including a $10M revenue bond, the capital 
improvement plan, operations and maintenance, and planning for the future.  He reviewed some of the 
stormwater capital improvements that had been completed, current projects, and upcoming projects.  
 
Ms. Bishop explained the rate comparison for residential stormwater. Eugene is slightly lower than 
Springfield in its currently adopted rates. Staff is proposing a 3.5% increase in Springfield on July 1 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
April 25, 2016 
Page 4 
 
for residential stormwater. Eugene is proposing a 7.5% increase. Should both increases go forward, it 
would bring us closer to Eugene’s rate. She explained the option being recommended by staff and 
what it would fund. She discussed the rate drivers for stormwater rates and forecast which includes 
debt service requirements, investment of capital improvements, increased operating requirements, 
maintaining a healthy financial position, and inflation. 
 
Councilor Moore said some people are paying for stormwater when they don’t have stormwater. She 
asked if some of those funds would be going towards improvements or just maintaining what we have. 
 
Mr. Stouder said a majority of the fee goes towards compliance and water quality. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the advantage of not adding to the stormwater system. 
 
Ms. Bishop further reviewed staff’s recommendation on local wastewater and stormwater services.  
 
Mr. Stouder said the MWMC regional rate would come to Council for a public hearing. They would 
also be asked to ratify the MWMC budget. MWMC reissued two bonds that will save $15M over a ten 
year period. The rates will continue to increase slightly due to a number of projects that are needed, 
and to pay off their debt. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri asked if there is a fiscal reason why staff is looking at front loading in Option 2. 
 
Mr. Stouder said in the out-years for stormwater in Option 2, the increases are slightly larger in the 
2020 projected. 
 
Ms. Bishop explained the need for more funds for the requirements for higher standards on the 
operating side. The proceeds from the revenue bond have been fully expended on the local wastewater 
side. Many wastewater projects are rehabilitation and are not eligible for SDC revenues. To shore up 
the local wastewater, they felt it would be good to come down on the stormwater rate to balance it out. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri asked about programing costs for a new structure and if there was a portion of 
this money that was helping pay for that project. 
 
Ms. Bishop said the local revenues were completely separate. 
 
Councilor Moore said knowing how much was in the capital fund and exactly where the funds were 
going would help her justify rate increases. 
 
Ms. Bishop said revenues generated today, are for planning for tomorrow. To avoid interest, it’s 
important to have a healthy reserve.  
 
Discussion was held regarding reserves and capital project costs.  
 
Ms. Bishop said over the five year forecast, each option would contribute the following estimated 
amounts towards the capital reserve to be invested in the community’s wastewater pipeline system. 

• Option 1 – about $9.8M 
• Option 2 – about $10.2M; and 
• Option 3 – about $10.6M 

 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
April 25, 2016 
Page 5 
 
Council consensus was to move forward with Option 2. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:25 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 
 



City of Springfield 
Regular Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY MAY 2, 2016 
 

The City of Springfield Council met in regular session in the Council Chambers, 225 Fifth Street, 
Springfield, Oregon, on Monday May 2, 2016 at 7:03 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and 
Pishioneri. Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City 
Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Lundberg. 
 
SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT 
 
1. Mayor’s Recognition 
 

a. Earth Day Poster Contest Winners. 
 
Amber Fossen, Public Information and Educational Analyst, presented this item. The 10th Annual 
Earth Day Poster Contest was a success with nearly 430 fourth grade students in the Springfield Public 
School District participating. The 2016 theme is “Earth Heroes!” Protecting our planet is everyone’s 
responsibility so we asked students what they do to help save Planet Earth.  
 
The winning posters are on display in the City Hall lobby through mid-May. 
 
This is the first year the poster contest was held for fourth grade students only. Last year, we invited 
both fourth and fifth grades to participate as part of a transition plan to move the popular contest from 
fifth grade to fourth grade.  
 
The intent of moving the poster contest to fourth grade is to create more connections with multiple 
grades at Springfield Public Schools. Staff determined this Earth Day contest is a perfect fit for fourth 
graders, while we continue with Public Works Week for third grade students and Clean Water 
University for fifth grade students. 
 
Ms. Fossen asked Mayor Lundberg to present framed certificates for each of the five winners of the 
contest: 

• First Place: Jillian Chamberlain-Seitz 
• Second Place: Cohen Rose 
• Third Place: Mirella Farias 
• Fourth Place: Madison Blaine 
• Fifth Place: Lesly Deskin 

Mayor Lundberg said judging these posters was always very difficult because there were so many 
great posters, it was hard to choose only five. She presented certificates to the winners and 
congratulated the students. 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
b. Salvation Army Week Proclamation. 

 
Mayor Lundberg presented the Salvation Army Week Proclamation to Major Mitham, Chris Stole, and 
George Wild from the Salvation Army with the proclamation. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Claims 
 
2. Minutes 
 

a. March 14, 2016 – Work Session 
b. March 21, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
c. March 28, 2016 – Work Session 
d. April 4, 2016 – Work Session 

 
3. Resolutions 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 2016-10 – A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A 5-YEAR, TAX EXEMPT, LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH 
PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE TO FINANCE THE PURCHASE OF A NEW FIRE 
PUMPER. 

 
4. Ordinances 
 
5. Other Routine Matters 
 

a. Approval of the Liquor License Application for Along Came Trudy, Located at 1486 18th 
Street, Springfield, Oregon. 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request to speak cards are available at 

both entrances.  Please present cards to City Recorder.  Speakers may not 
yield their time to others. 

 
1. Setting Local and Regional Wastewater and Stormwater User Fees Effective July 1, 2016. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-11 – A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD SETTING 
LOCAL AND REGIONAL WASTEWATER (SEWER) USER FEES AND LOCAL 
STORMWATER (DRAINAGE) USER FEES AS SET FORTH IN THE SPRINGFIELD 
MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
Matt Stouder, Environmental Services Manager, presented the staff report on this item. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 3 
 
Each year, the City Council reviews and establishes the rates for local wastewater and stormwater user 
fees. These rates are established to provide adequate revenue to fund operation and maintenance (O&M) 
of Springfield’s wastewater (sanitary sewer) and stormwater systems, and a portion of the Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) for each program. The Council also adopts the user fees set by the 
Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) for the Regional Wastewater Program. 
 
The City Council reviewed and discussed options for local wastewater and stormwater user fee 
adjustments at its April 25, 2016 work session. Council provided guidance to staff to prepare a resolution 
based on Option 2 in the April 25 agenda packet for both wastewater and stormwater services. Staff has 
prepared a schedule of user charges for a public hearing, based on the 2.5% increase in the local 
wastewater user fees and a 3.5% increase in the local stormwater user fees. In addition, the Council was 
informed that the MWMC adopted a 2.0% increase in the regional wastewater user fees that also needs 
to be incorporated into the schedule of user charges for FY 16-17.   
 
Staff continues to explore options to reduce pressure on user fees while continuing to meet 
environmental and regulatory standards. A successful strategy will take multiple years to implement and 
will, in part, depend on the City’s ability to significantly reduce reliance on user rates as a source of 
capital, by improving the ability of System Development Charge (SDC) revenues to fund a greater 
portion of the capital investment. This could reduce and/or defer the need to rely on future debt financing 
and reduce the importance of providing coverage for debt service as an operating budget constraint in the 
long-term financial forecast.  
 
A resolution establishing the local and regional wastewater and local stormwater user fees for FY 16-17, 
is provided for Council consideration. Staff requests that the Council act on the resolution following the 
public hearing. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared to speak on this item. 
 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2016-11.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE 
OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
2. Proposed Changes to Springfield Municipal Code 7.330 and 7.332. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL 
CODE SECTIONS 7.330 AND 7.332 REGARDING PUBLIC PASSENGER VEHICLE 
SERVICES 

 
Kristina Kraaz, City Attorney, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
A work session was held on April 11, 2016 to discuss this proposed ordinance and the City of 
Eugene’s proposed Public Passenger Vehicle (PPV) rules.  Feedback was provided to the City of 
Eugene regarding the sufficiency of background checks, simplifying the insurance requirements, and 
simplifying the signage requirements.   
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 4 
 
In response to Council’s feedback and requests for further information on behalf of the Council, the 
City of Eugene has provided additional information, which was provided to the Council. 
 
Adopting the proposed code amendment will have no financial impact to the City.  From the operator 
perspective, it is more cost effective to obtain one license and follow one set of standards in order to 
operate in both cities. 
 
The City of Eugene administers and enforces the business license requirements for public passenger 
vehicles for both Eugene and Springfield.  Eugene recently updated their code and license regulations 
to allow for transportation network companies (TNCs) to operate in the area.  For those operators to be 
able to conduct business in Springfield with the license issued by Eugene, the City Council needs to 
co-adopt the code amendments.  There is no cost to Springfield for Eugene to provide this service, nor 
does Springfield receive any license revenue. The City of Eugene would like to work further with the 
City of Springfield to find more resolution on some of the concerns from the Springfield Council. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked where vehicle inspections and the approval process were located in the rules or 
code. She described a two-step process. 
 
Ms. Kraaz said she didn’t recall getting that detail from the City of Eugene.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said she may have received that information from the Uber representative she spoke 
with. She would like additional information on that piece. 
 
Ms. Kraaz said she would look into it and provide the response. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared to speak on this item. 
 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 
 
NO ACTION REQUESTED. FIRST READING ONLY. 
 
3. Licensing Fee for Medical Marijuana Dispensaries. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-12 – A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD AMENDING THE MASTER FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE 
AS ESTABLISHED BY THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE TO AMEND THE 
BUSINESS LICENSE FEE FOR MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES. 

 
Mary Bridget Smith, City Attorney, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
The City seeks to lower the licensing fee applicable to medical marijuana dispensaries in the City of 
Springfield. 
 
Medical marijuana dispensaries are currently required to obtain a business license from the City and 
pay a fee of $1,092 per year under SMC 7.600 et seq. The City Council has recently adopted new 
business license and associated regulations for recreational marijuana businesses. The Council has set 
the license fee for recreational marijuana businesses at $2,000 per year. There are currently 8 medical 
marijuana dispensaries located in the City of Springfield, and to date, 7 of those have applied to OLCC 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 5 
 
to become licensed as recreational marijuana businesses. If those facilities become licensed as 
recreational businesses, they will pay the higher recreational marijuana license fees and will no longer 
pay the medical marijuana dispensary fee. The new proposed fee for medical marijuana dispensaries is 
$750 per year. If this Resolution is adopted, the medical marijuana dispensary fee will be lowered in 
the City’s Master Fees and Charges Schedule and updated as per Council direction in the future. 
 
The financial impact is unknown because it is not definitely known how many current medical 
marijuana dispensaries within the City of Springfield will convert to recreational marijuana business, 
and whether any new medical marijuana dispensaries will locate in the City of Springfield.  If 7 out of 
the 8 existing dispensaries convert their licenses to recreational marijuana businesses, and no new 
medical marijuana dispensaries locate in Springfield, then the financial impact of this proposed fee 
decrease would be a loss of $342 per year to the City of Springfield.  This loss from the single 
remaining dispensary would be offset by $6,356 in additional revenue from the 7 potential recreational 
businesses, for a net gain of $6,014 to the City of Springfield. 
 
If the business had both recreational and medical marijuana, the business would only pay the higher 
fee for recreational marijuana, not both licenses. The fee for recreational marijuana is $2,000/annually. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared to speak. 
 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2016-12.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 

1. Ralph Rodia, Salem, OR.  Mr. Rodia said he was here to represent the Oregon State 
Beekeepers Association to discuss Springfield’s rules regarding beekeeping. Many cities have 
rules regarding bees, some are extensive and some are very simple. The City of Springfield’s 
rule is very simple yet also very restrictive.  They are responding because a citizen, Wendy 
Mogstad, was told she was in violation of that rule because her property is 9686 square feet 
instead of 10,000 square feet. She was advised she would have to remove her bees from her 
property. Square footage has little or nothing to do with safety of bees. Bees will fly where 
they want, whether a mile, a block or next door. There are some guidelines to minimize honey 
bee effects on neighbors using hedges and keeping enough water. Other communities have 
adopted these kinds of rules. The City of Eugene is much more lenient on their square footage 
requirements than the City of Springfield.  He had provided information through email and 
distributed at tonight’s meeting about the City of Hubbard. Their rules were adopted in March 
after the OSBA worked with the City on those rules. The rules were to protect citizens, yet 
allow beekeeping. They would like to see table the notice of violation for Ms. Mogstad or say 
that her square footage is close enough to the code. During the 2015 legislature, HB2653 was 
adopted directing the State Department of Agriculture, Oregon State University and OSBA to 
come up with some guidelines. Those will take three years, so he is asking Springfield to 
make their rules less restrictive. 

 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 6 
 

2. Wendy Mogstad, Springfield, OR  Ms. Mogstad said she was notified by the animal control 
officer that a neighbor had complained about her bees. She had already talked with her 
neighbors their concerns and how they could adapt their hummingbird feeders so bees would 
not feed from their feeders. That must not have alleviated their concerns. She would like the 
Council to take into consideration the nationwide and worldwide plight of the honeybee and 
help support them. 

 
3. Raine Lee Ritalto, Portland, OR  Ms. Ritalto said HB2653 came into being because of her 

battle to keep bees in Gresham where bees were prohibited. She started looking at the City’s 
standards and found there were no standards in the State regarding bees. One of the goals of 
the bill is to get standards. Currently, it is very onerous for beekeepers when they move from 
one City to another.  She said it would be helpful if they could at least have the same standard 
by County. From a beekeeping point of view, only keeping one hive is not sustainable. She 
explained. That limitation in Springfield’s Code is a concern for her. She emailed the Mayor 
and Council a link to HB2653 and Gresham’s code.  It took three years for the City of 
Gresham to decide they would allow beekeeping, and now have a reasonable code. The City 
of Gresham now allows 6 colonies, and the City of Portland allows 15 colonies. She has a 
standard size lot with 6 colonies and an immediate neighbor who is bee allergic. They have 
never had an issue because she uses ways to mitigate bees leaving her property.  
 
Councilor Ralston said three years ago he read that bees were in danger. Glory Bees puts on a 
‘Save the Bee’ drive in which people can buy hives, so he has been a beekeeper for three 
years.  He understands what they are saying about the Code and agrees that being allowed to 
keep only one colony is unsustainable. He spends hours watching the bees, and they don’t 
sting. They are not a hazard. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said her experience with bees goes back to her childhood so she 
understands the concerns. She would like to discuss this further. 
 
Councilor Wylie said she would also like to be supportive and look at the City’s code on bees. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said he agreed and would like to have a further conversation regarding 
the Code. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said he wants to be known as a bee friendly city.  They could address 
issues as they occur.  He likes the idea of getting signatures from neighbors as a possible 
solution. He wants to let people do what they need to do without government intrusion, but 
also wants to be respectful of neighbors. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said had asked for more information, and would also like to look into the 
situation with Ms. Mogstad to see what we can do. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said staff would look into it and see what could be done. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she liked the idea of a countywide measure so would like to have a 
conversation at the county level so we’re all on a level playing field. She appreciates bees and 
there is a general consensus of the Council that they would be supportive. 

 
4. Tom Mulhern, Catholic Community Services, Springfield, OR.  Mr. Mulhern said action was 

proposed on the Council agenda regarding the Community Development Block Grant 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 7 
 

(CDBG) program, which includes funding support for the G Street OASIS project, a 
collaborative program benefiting homeless families in Springfield. He thanked them for taking 
that action and providing funding for this program. This has been a great project so far with 
Councilor VanGordon serving on the task force, as well as staff member KarLynn Akins. This 
has been approached from a team standpoint for the community. There are currently six 
families enrolled and hope to be up to 15-20 families by the end of the month. 
 

5. Bob Genoves, Springfield, OR.  Mr. Genoves said he had a couple of complaints. He walks 
the streets with his dogs and he finds a lot of the streets are unpaved with no curbs. He doesn’t 
understand. He also said he noticed there is a bond about painting schools in Springfield. We 
will have the best painted schools in Oregon with the worst graduation rate. He thinks the 
priorities aren’t right. 

 
6. Larry Kirk, Springfield, OR.  Mr. Kirk said the Council wants to lower the speed limit (on 

Main Street), but that isn’t the answer. The answer is good patrol. The accidents and deaths 
are from people not paying attention, not from speed. Lowering the speed limit isn’t the 
solution. He said he would use $750,000 in stimulus funds for police officers to put on Main 
Street until the funds are gone. He said he drove truck for years and never had an accident 
because he always assessed the situation. He spoke regarding the young girl who was out of 
her parent’s car at an intersection to give to a panhandler. He doesn’t think that situation 
happened and if it did it would have been a child endangerment situation and the councilor 
should have called the police.  
 
Councilor Pishioneri recalled the situation referred to at the intersection and the circumstances 
around that situation. 
 

COUNCIL RESPONSE 
 
CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS 
 
BIDS 
 
ORDINANCES 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
1. Business from Council 
 

a. Committee Reports 
 

i. Councilor Woodrow said it was nice for the Mayor and her to go on the EmX tour with 
the Governor. It was great to meet the Governor and other people who are involved in 
the study and what the future might hold for the community. No decisions have been 
made, but they are looking forward to the process. 

 
ii. Mayor Lundberg reports on her trip to Washington DC for the ThinkBike Event 

workshop. She learned a lot and met with staff to debrief about the possibilities of how 
to make our streets safer and accommodate everyone on the road. 

 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 8 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 
1. Public Right-of-Way Use Agreement to Allow Private Developer JM Hotel, LLC to Place, 

Construct, and Maintain: Earth and Structural Fill, Vegetation, Stormwater Facilities, and Remove 
and Reconstruct an Existing Access Road. 
 

Jeff Paschall, City Engineer, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Local developer JM Hotel, LLC, have proposed to build a four story 81 room Fairfield Inn and Suites 
in Glenwood. The new hotel will be along the south side of Franklin Boulevard just west of the 
existing Candlewood Suites Hotel. As part of the Development, the developers have proposed to use a 
portion of existing public right of way to construct stormwater improvements and vegetation for site 
beautification and amenity. In addition, the developer will remove and reconstruct an existing gravel 
road that provides access to the Whilamut Passage Bridge, the Glenwood North Channel, and the 
Glenwood Slough.  
 
Chapter 3.224 of the Springfield Municipal Code provides for utilizing a public way use agreement to 
authorize the placement of privately owned devices or structures within a public way.  The developers 
of the Fairfield Inn and Suites desire to use approximately the southern 45 to 20 feet of the Franklin 
Boulevard right-of-way to construct the desired facilities.  These facilities will be built using private 
funds, and maintained by JM Hotel, LLC.   
 
The proposed Public Way Use Agreement allows the developer to build and maintain the fill, 
vegetation, and stormwater in perpetuity while preserving the public's rights and releasing the City 
from financial liability regarding the installed facilities.  The Agreement binds the developer, JM 
Hotel, LLC, and future heirs and successors. In the unlikely event that the facilities become 
problematic for the City, Section 10 of the Agreement provides the opportunity for the City to 
terminate the Agreement upon 60 days' notice. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO AUTHORIZE THE DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR TO 
ISSUE A PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY USE AGREEMENT TO JM HOTEL, LLC TO PLACE, 
CONSTRUCT, AND MAINTAIN: EARTH AND STRUCTURAL FILL, VEGETATION, 
STORMWATER FACILITIES, AND REMOVE AND RECONSTRUCT AN EXISTING 
ACCESS ROAD. THE MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
2. Refined Franklin Boulevard Resolution of Necessity. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-13 – A RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE POWER OF EMINENT 
DOMAIN AND AUTHORIZING A RESOLUTION PURSUANT TO ORS 223.005, ORS 
223.105 and ORS 35.600-625 CONCERNING ACQUISTION RIGHT OF WAY NECESSARY 
FOR THE FRANKLIN BOULEVARD REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT (PHASE I)  (Project No. 
P21066) 

 
Mary Bridget Smith, City Attorney, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
The City of Springfield has completed 90% design of Franklin Boulevard (Phase I) Reconstruction 
Project and is requesting the Council adopt a Refined Resolution Authorizing Right of Way 
Acquisition Needed for Phase I as required by law. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 9 
 
Council adopted a previous Resolution of Necessity in July of 2015 but that was based on an earlier 
design and 90% design impacts less property.  The project goal remains to successfully negotiate with 
the property owners and come to an agreement for just compensation to acquire property needed for 
the project.  However, this refined Resolution of Necessity and IGA will allow the City to proceed 
with condemnation proceedings in those situations when agreement on public acquisition cannot be 
reached. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said the resolution doesn’t mean they are exercising eminent domain, but just gives 
authority to do so if they are not able to reach a settlement. 
 
Ms. Smith said that is correct. The City has worked hard to minimize the impact to property owners 
with the design. Now, staff is working with property owners to come to a settlement for acquiring the 
property to increase the right-of-way. If they can’t come to a settlement, they will need to file a 
condemnation action at Lane County Circuit Court in order to get possession of the property and not 
miss the construction season. They would then talk about just compensation. 
 
Councilor Ralston asked how many properties are involved. 
 
Ms. Smith said about 20 properties, with 13 property owners. 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2016-13. THE MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE 
OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN IGA WITH LANE 
COUNTY FOR DELEGATION OF EMINENT DOMAIN AUTHORITY. THE MOTION 
PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
3. Ratification of the Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) FY 2016-17 

Regional Wastewater Program Budget and Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 
 
Matt Stouder, Environmental Services Manager, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
As provided for in the MWMC Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), the City of Springfield, the City 
of Eugene, and Lane County, as governing bodies, must ratify the annual MWMC’s Budget and CIP. 
 
The FY 2016-17 (FY 16-17) Regional Wastewater (RWP) Budget and CIP document was approved by 
the MWMC on April 8, 2016. In preparing and reviewing the Budget and CIP, the MWMC convened 
three work sessions and a public hearing prior to taking action to adopt the FY 16-17 MWMC Budget. 
The FY 16-17 Budget funds all operations, administrative services, and capital projects planned for the 
Regional Wastewater Facilities. The approved operating budget is $17.7 million, which includes a 
total increase of 2.0% ($351,158) in FY 16-17, when compared to the prior year. 
 
The CIP outlines and describes the capital projects planned for the next five years. The FY 16-17 
RWP Budget and CIP document reflects a continued focus on the completion of facilities upgrades, 
plant performance improvements, and operations and maintenance activities to provide wastewater 
treatment for a growing community through 2025 in a manner that protects the public’s health and 
safety, and the environment. The Commission took a corresponding action to adopt a 2.0% increase in 
regional wastewater user charges in order to fully fund the Budget and CIP. On May 2, 2016 the City 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 10 
 
Council will hold a public hearing on the FY 16-17 regional rates within the City. Following the 
public hearing, Council is scheduled to adopt a resolution to set the FY 16-17 regional user fee rates 
within the City of Springfield. 
 
In accordance with the IGA, the MWMC contracts with the City of Eugene for operations and 
maintenance services, and with the City of Springfield for administrative services. The attached 
budget document provides regional program and budget summaries as well as detailed budgets for 
services provided by Eugene and Springfield. The budget document also provides information about 
how the RWP activities are driven by the MWMC established goals and performance measures. 
 
The FY 16-17 RWP Budget and CIP must be approved by the MWMC and ratified by Lane County, 
the cities of Eugene and Springfield, and then finally adopted by the MWMC, prior to the beginning of 
the next fiscal year (July 1, 2016). The Eugene City Council is scheduled to ratify the MWMC Budget 
and CIP on May 9, 2016, and the Board of Commissioners is scheduled to ratify the MWMC Budget 
and CIP on May 17, 2016, with MWMC final budget adoption on June 10, 2016. 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO RATIFY THE FY 2016-17 REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM BUDGET 
AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
4. CDBG Fiscal Year 2016-2017 One-Year Action Plan and Substantial Amendments to Prior Year 

Action Plans. 
 
Erin Fifield, Community Development Analyst, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
One-Year Action Plans must be submitted to HUD prior to the beginning of each fiscal year as 
amendments to the five-year Eugene-Springfield Consolidated Plan.  The Springfield CDBG section 
of the FY2016-2017 One-Year Action Plan indicates how Springfield intends to use CDBG funds to 
fulfill the goals established in the Consolidated Plan.   
 
Significant changes to prior year One-Year Action Plans require a substantial amendment to the One 
Year Action Plan in which funds were first awarded, as part of the Consolidated Plan’s Citizen 
Participation Plan.  
 
Ms. Fifield described the projects in the One-Year Action Plan and the changes to the prior year Plan. 
 
These actions are in line with Council direction provided during the work session on April 18, 2016. 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO ADOPT THE SPRINGFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
(CDBG) SECTION OF THE FY2016-2017 EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD ONE-YEAR ACTION 
PLAN. THE MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO ADOPT THE SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR CDBG ONE-
YEAR ACTION PLANS.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 
AGAINST. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 11 
 
5. Glenwood Cross Laminated Timber Parking Garage Design Services Contract with SRG 

Partnership. 
 
Courtney Griesel, Community Development Manager, presented the staff report on this item. 
SEDA seeks to build a CLT parking garage in the Glenwood Area to serve riverfront redevelopment. 
The City is proposing to enter into an agreement with SRG Partnership, Inc. for architect services. The 
costs of these services are proposed to be funded by SEDA, as approved in the FY16 and FY17 
budgets. Due to the unique design and initial conceptual work developed as part of partnerships with 
SRG and the University of Oregon for submittal to the Oregon BEST CLT Design Competition, staff 
proposes this work be authorized through a sole source contract with SRG Partnership, Inc. 
 
The Glenwood Riverfront CLT parking structure is located in the north riverfront area of Phase I of the 
Glenwood Refinement Plan. The Refinement Plan promotes density and a mix of uses while 
intentionally limiting the development of surface parking lots.  This intentional plan generates the 
demand for structured parking, a necessary piece of infrastructure identified by the development 
community when evaluating the redevelopment area potential.  The City and SEDA propose to 
leverage SEDA investments for design and development of a parking structure sized to adequately 
serve the immediately surrounding north riverfront area.  As the garage is envisioned to utilize CLT, 
an innovative and non-traditional construction material, incentive and support will be required to assist 
in project realization.  This contract will begin the process of shaping and funding the structure design 
which will serve as the basis for public and private partnerships.   The proposed contract with SRG 
Partnership includes Glenwood area CLT parking garage design services specific to: 

• Development of Schematic Design in an amount not to exceed $289,435 
• Detailed Design Development in an amount not to exceed $389,115 
• A total contract not to exceed amount of $678,550 
• A final product/deliverable date of December 31, 2017 

Staff is requesting Council provide authorization to the City Manager to complete remaining minor 
contract negotiations with SRG Partnership, Inc. for architect services specific to design of the 
Glenwood CLT Parking structure and to execute the agreement so long as the additions/deletions do 
not impact the proposed not to exceed amounts or final deliverable date. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO COMPLETE MINOR NEGOTIATIONS 
AND SIGN A CONTRACT WITH SRG PARTNERSHIP FOR SCHEMATIC DESIGN AND 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT SERVICES SPECIFIC TO THE DESIGN OF A CROSS 
LAMINATED TIMBER (CLT) PARKING GARAGE IN GLENWOOD. THE MOTION 
PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO APPROVE THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE 
SPRINGFIELD ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (SEDA) TO ALLOW SEDA TO 
MAKE FINANCIAL PAYMENTS TO THE CITY FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF SRG 
DESIGN SERVICES. THE MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 
Ms. Smith said there were actually 12 owners for the 20 properties affected by the Franklin Boulevard 
project. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 12 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned 7:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in regular session in the Council Chambers, 225 Fifth Street, 
Springfield, Oregon, on Monday May 2, 2016 at 8:04 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and 
Pishioneri. Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City 
Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
1. Glenwood Cross Laminated Timber Parking Garage Design Services Contract with SRG 

Partnership. 
 
City Attorney Mary Bridget Smith presented this portion of this item. The SRG contract has a sole 
source justification to work with that firm. It is very particularized work they are doing for the City. 
The sole source justification is in the agenda packet and is in an amount over $100,000 so requires 
Council approval.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said there are several groups that do CLT buildings. She asked for more information 
on why this was a sole source contract. 
 
Courtney Griesel, Community Development Manager, said they are the architectural firm that was 
involved in the original concepts which the Oregon Best Competition design was built from. SRG has 
an intrinsic level of knowledge of that concept and were the entry partner with the City in that 
competition. SRG also has extensive experience in parking garages. They are one of the first 
experienced designers for CLT buildings in Oregon, but are not the only designers. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WLYIE TO APPROVE SRG AS THE SOLE SOURCE JUSTIFICATION OVER $100,000. 
THE MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned 8:06 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder Amy Sowa 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
City Recorder 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY MAY 9, 2016 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday May 9, 2016 at 5:30 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Woodrow and Pishioneri. 
Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney 
Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
Councilor Ralston was absent (excused). 
 
1. Main Street Speed Study. 
 
Brian Barnett, Traffic Engineer, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) conducted two speed zone investigations: Main Street 
from 20th Street to South 71st Street, and Highway 126 from Main Street northward approximately 
1,000 feet. Staff suggested ODOT consider a 5 MPH reduction of the speed limit on Main Street and a 
10 MPH reduction on Highway 126 in accord with Council input. Based upon their investigation 
ODOT recommends retaining the existing posted speed limits.  
 
ODOT’s cover letter states that lowering the posted speed limit will not change current driver speeds 
because drivers will continue to drive speeds they feel fit the characteristics of the street. Absent 
vigorous and ongoing enforcement, drivers will not comply with a speed they determine as arbitrarily 
low. In the Main Street segment studied 83% of crashes were rear-end or turning type which is typical 
of a suburban street. Most crashes listed the cause as following too close or for failure to yield right of 
way, neither of which is affected by reducing speed limits. The primary contributing factors to the 
pedestrian crashes include pedestrians not visible due to dark clothing where street lighting is limited, 
impaired pedestrians, and distracted drivers failing to yield to a traffic control device or failing to yield 
to a pedestrian crossing at a lawful location.  
 
Speed is best managed by the design features of the street observable by drivers including horizontal 
and vertical curvature, number of lanes, lane width, perception of distant and lateral vistas and tunnel 
effects from features such as buildings, trees, etc., raised medians, intersection frequency and type, and 
type and culture of the street side activity and development. Several efforts are underway that will 
favorably affect street safety for pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicle occupants. The Main Street Corridor 
Vision Plan places great emphasis on using street design to create a “complete street” that fosters 
safety for each type of user. The City applied for traffic safety projects through the All Roads 
Transportation Safety (ARTS) program including adding street lights and adding a raised median. The 
Main McVay Transit Study is evaluating transit improvements which may include a raised median and 
roundabouts in lieu of several signalized intersections. ODOT and City completed a pedestrian safety 
study resulting in four pedestrian medians with rapid flashing beacons (RFB) that are in place at 35th 
Street, 41st Street, 44th Street, 51st Street, two more are expected at Chapman Ln., and 48th Street this 
summer. Also along Main Street a pedestrian hybrid beacon is proposed near 66th Street. ODOT 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
May 9, 2016 
Page 2 
 
installed reflectorized back plates on signal heads and added pedestrian crossing count down heads to 
all signals. 
 
If an agency doesn’t concur with ODOT’s recommendations an appeal may be filed with the Speed 
Zone Review Panel. The panel is composed of the chair of the Transportation Safety Committee, 
traffic engineers appointed by League of Oregon Cities, Association of Oregon Counties, an ODOT 
engineer, and a State Police representative. The panel will conduct a hearing and consider public 
testimony and information provided by the agency and ODOT and will make a binding determination 
of the speed limit. The panel on occasion will alter the speed recommended by ODOT but generally 
adheres to their recommendation. 
 
Mr. Barnett said ODOT and the City are committed to making Main Street safer through crosswalks, 
enforcement, treatments, and lighting. He outlined the engineering efforts that had been done and 
would be done in the future such as additional pedestrian crossings, the Main/McVay Transit Study, 
Main Street Corridor Visioning, and ODOT’s All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) program. He 
explained how engineering helped reduce speed limits on Rainbow Drive by about 4 mph. 
 
Mr. Barnett reviewed the appeal process to ODOT regarding speed limits to the Speed Zone Review 
panel. This panel is made up of a League of Oregon Cities (LOC) representative, Association of 
Oregon Counties (AOC) representative, the State’s Chief Engineer or designee from ODOT, State 
Police representative, region traffic engineer and Oregon Traffic Safety Commission Chair or 
designee. Mr. Barnett said he serves as the LOC representative and is the current chair. The panel will 
hear the presentation from the agency making the appeal and also by ODOT and evaluate that 
information based on the administrative rules that govern the panel and what they may consider. Once 
the panel renders their decision, ODOT is bound by that decision. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said she had concerns in looking at the 85th percentile. Most people drive 5 mph 
above the speed limit, which is customary. She asked if ODOT took that into consideration. 
 
Mr. Barnett said they look at the speed profile, and look for a steep curve of people at a different 
speed. When everyone is going about the same speed, there are fewer accidents. The 10 mph 
increment is where most people exist. There have been numerous studies showing that people don’t 
reduce their speed simply when the speed limit is changed, absent aggressive enforcement. This is not, 
however, the only study.  
 
Councilor Woodrow said the community has said it is willing to reduce their speed to improve safety 
on Main Street. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said he felt they should file an appeal on behalf of the community. The 
methodology feels like it is a self-fulfilling prophecy. It seems that the City should be able to affect a 
speed limit on a street that goes through our town. This study didn’t address the safest speed for 
pedestrians. The number of accidents with pedestrians last year should be considered. 
 
Councilor Wylie said she has constituents that believe the speed is a problem and it is difficult to 
explain this study to the public. There have been a number of accidents on Main Street over the last 
four years. She asked if that was average. 
 
Mr. Barnett said the volume of traffic does affect the number of accidents, but each situation is 
different. Five years is considered the best span of time to study due to variability from year to year. 
Taking action too early with only a couple of years of data can cause more problems than it solves. 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
May 9, 2016 
Page 3 
 
Pedestrian accidents are infrequent compared to other accidents. He said he would move forward with 
an appeal if that is the direction of the Council.  ODOT would act on what they feel is appropriate. 
 
Councilor Moore asked why the study was just now being presented. 
 
Mr. Barnett said it took ODOT some time to complete the study.  A memo on the study was provided 
to the Council a couple of months ago. 
 
Councilor Moore said they were often clocking the time in the afternoon and it looked like it was in 
June. She agreed that the City should appeal to show the community that the City is doing what they 
can. There are people who are speeding in that stretch of roadway and there is a lot of activity along 
that corridor. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said he had looked at it closely and three-quarter of the accidents had nothing to 
do with speed. He feels energy should go into mitigating traffic by changing the look of Main Street 
through physical and engineering changes. This shows that speed is not the issue, but rather driver 
awareness. Pedestrian crossings have been effective and require drivers to focus more on what they are 
doing. He thinks appealing this would be an exercise of futility, but he would support whatever the 
Council decides. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said she is in favor of appealing to show the community that they are doing what 
they can to address the situation. There was a big meeting with citizens where speed was brought up as 
a factor. She would like to respond to the community. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said there are many facets to the work being done regarding Main Street – safety, 
revitalization and zoning. Reducing the speed is the first step. If they do all of the things they want to 
do to improve Main Street, it would naturally slow down traffic, but they will take longer. She 
attended an Oregon Metropolitan Planning Organization Committee (OMPOC) in Central Point. The 
City of Central Point had gotten their street reduced 10 mph, using medians with landscaping. 
Business development would also be affected in a positive way through a reduction in speed. The first 
step is to appeal, and if that is denied try to move faster on the other changes that will help reduce 
speed. She will share photos of Central Point with the rest of the Council and staff because it’s worth 
looking into. 
 
Councilor Wylie asked who would put together the appeal. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said staff would do research and include all things discussed. 
 
Mayor Lundberg suggested staff contact Central Point. 
 
Mr. Barnett asked he would contact Central Point about their project. He asked if they wanted to 
include lowering the speeds on both segments on Main Street. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said there is also a long 45 mph segment through Cedar Flats which then changes 
to 55 mph for about a mile, where it is again reduced to 45 mph. He would like to ask ODOT if they 
could maintain the 45 mph through the entire section from Cedar Flats. 
 
Mr. Barnett said he will look into that and see what can be done. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
May 9, 2016 
Page 4 
 
Mayor Lundberg said “speed zone ahead” signs are also helpful to warn people ahead of time. Also 
having signs warning that enforcement is ahead also causes behavior modification. 
 
2. Other Business 

 
Mr. Grimaldi said the ruling for binding arbitration with the Firefighters was in favor of the City. The 
Firefighters were looking for a 2-year agreement with salary increase of 5% each year. The City’s last 
best offer was a three-year agreement with salary increases of 3.5%, 3.5% and 3%. 
 
Councilor thanked staff. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:08 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 
 
 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY MAY 16, 2016 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Library Meeting Room, 225 Fifth Street, 
Springfield, Oregon, on Monday May 16, 2016 at 6:00 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors Wylie, Moore, Ralston, and Woodrow. Also present 
were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney Mary Bridget 
Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
Councilors VanGordon and Pishioneri were absent (excused) 
 
1. Sanipac Rate Increase Request. 
 
Anette Spickard, Development and Public Works Director, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Sanipac, the City’s franchise hauler for solid waste, has requested an increase of 1.79 percent for 
residential and commercial hauling rates.  This request is due to an increase approved by Lane County 
for the charges imposed for disposal of solid waste at the Short Mountain Landfill (tipping fee). 
 
In March 2016 the Board of County Commissioners determined that the rate imposed on solid waste 
haulers for disposal of waste at the Short Mountain landfill should be increased by $1.22 per ton to a 
new total of $76.77 per ton, effective July 1, 2016.  The County’s new fee structure also includes an 
automatic CPI increase to the tipping fee each year hereafter. 

Under section 16.4.b of the City’s franchise agreement with Sanipac, Sanipac is allowed to pass 
through the cost of county tipping fee increases to Springfield customers. 

The proposed increase represents an increase of $0.05 per month on the 21 and 35 gallon cart, $0.10 
per month for a 65 gallon cart, $0.15 per month for a 95 gallon cart, and $0.40 per month for a 1-Yard 
container. 

Sanipac last increased its rates in November 2014 and is permitted to request increases annually but is 
not asking for an increase this year beyond the cost of the new county tipping fee.  Sanipac has 
requested that the increase be effective July 1, 2016 to coincide with the effective date of the county’s 
fee.  
 
Council is scheduled to hold a public hearing and vote on the increase at tonight’s regular meeting. 
 
Ms. Spickard described the increases for the different size carts.  
 
Councilor Moore said she appreciated that they asked for only a small increase. She asked when they 
would be discussing the move and closure of the transfer station. 
 
Ms. Spickard said Lane County is going through a 20-year Master Plan which includes an evaluation 
of moving the transfer station. The consultant’s report was recently completed for the initial 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
May 16, 2016 
Page 2 
 
evaluation. That report will go to the Lane County Board of Commissioners in June or July. The 
discussion with the Commissioners will give staff direction on which parts of the consultant’s 
recommendation they would like to move forward. City staff has been attending stakeholder meetings 
and receiving information, and saw the initial recommendation last month. Once staff has more 
specific details, she will provide the information in a Communication Packet for the Council. 
 
This will not affect the proposed rates. 
 
2. Main Street/McVay Highway Transit Study Phase 2 Update. 
 
Tom Boyatt, Community Development Manager, and Emma Newman, Transportation Planner, 
presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Phase 2 of the Main – McVay Transit Study seeks to identify a Locally Preferred Solution to 
implement EmX bus rapid transit on Main Street and South ‘A’ St between the Lane Transit District 
Springfield Station and the Thurston Station at Bob Straub Parkway; and Enhanced Bus treatments on 
McVay Highway south through Glenwood to Lane Community College.  The Project is a joint effort 
between the City of Springfield and LTD to evaluate and select the most promising transit and 
associated roadway improvements to address growing concerns about roadway safety, congestion, and 
quality of life in the corridor. 
 
In March staff provided Council with information about intensive efforts to reach out to Main Street 
business and property owners to share the narrowed range of solutions proposed by the Governance 
Team (GT).  Since that time, staff has worked hard to associate every address along the Main Street/S. 
A Street corridor with a business name and phone number.  In April staff began contacting all the 
businesses by phone to explain the project and offer to visit with each business and/or property owner.  
As of early May, staff had identified 325 businesses along Main Street and S. A Street.  Over 450 
phone calls have been made, and contact was established with 253 businesses leading to over 35 sit 
down meetings with owners or managers so far in the process.  In several cases, multiple discussions 
have occurred with the same business owner as they have had a chance to absorb and think about the 
information and bring more detailed questions to the discussion.  Staff is continuing to identify correct 
business names and phone numbers for businesses not yet reached. 
 
The week of May 2nd the Project partners began mailing letters to each identified business and 
property owner on Main Street east of 21st St, and next week similar mail will go out to the Main 
Street/South A Street business and property owners between 21st and 5th Streets.  Each outreach letter 
contains an invitation to meet with project staff, a summary of the study, a description of the narrowed 
options being considered, cross section diagrams, and an aerial image of the address range of the 
recipient that shows the approximate location of widening as proposed.  The letter for the two-way 
segment of Main Street also includes sketches of the concepts for that area.   
 
The Council Briefing Memo included in the agenda packet provides information about project design 
concepts forwarded by the Governance Team (GT) for public consideration and an initial summary of 
input and feedback received to date.  Staff expects to continue to schedule one-on-one meetings with 
businesses and property owners once they receive the outreach letter inviting them to meet. These 
meetings will continue throughout spring and will start focusing on more design solutions oriented 
discussions throughout summer. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
May 16, 2016 
Page 3 
 
Mr. Boyatt said this project is part of a larger ongoing effort in the metro area to determine which 
corridor to implement EmX. LTD is studying Main/McVay and several corridors in Eugene. The 
transit study for Main/McVay is grounded in the City’s ongoing efforts to address citizen requests to 
make Main Street safer, and to address our growing population, congestion and community changes. 
The outreach has helped establish contacts with 100s of businesses and over 50 face-to-face meetings 
have occurred to date. There are many other meetings being scheduled. 
 
Mr. Boyatt said the City provided the consultant team with the City’s standards for arterial roadways 
with a minimum 7-foot sidewalk, 5-foot landscape strip and 12 foot travel lanes. In an effort to address 
roadway safety and reduce speeds, they also provided standards for separated bike facility of 9 feet, a 
center raised median at 8 feet in a roundabout corridor, or 12 feet in a signalized corridor. 
 
Ms. Newman distributed a document showing safety figures for those concepts. 
 
Mr. Boyatt said currently the two-way corridor of Main Street is generally 80 feet, wider in some 
locations. Within that 80 feet are two sidewalks (between 5-7 feet), five foot bike lanes, four eleven-
foot travel lanes, and one 12-foot center turn lane.  The design concepts include segments between 
intersections that ranged from 92 feet to 126 feet wide. The concepts that will move forward by the 
Governance Team (GT) for public input include two options that are 96 feet wide for EmX mixed in 
with regular traffic and roundabouts at intersections, and 116 feet wide with EmX dedicated center 
lanes and roundabouts at intersections. The Main Street/South A Street concepts included route 
alignment and widening to 67 feet from 60 feet. The concept for the segment at 14th would include 
widening Main Street as much as 17 feet. McVay Highway would have minimal widening for 
enhancements. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked what the process would be if they wanted to change the concepts that were 
approved by the Governance Team. 
 
Mr. Boyatt said the Council would communicate their desire to the Springfield Governance Team 
(GT) representatives (Mayor Lundberg and Councilor Woodrow), to bring it back to the GT for 
review. The GT would then hear their input and review the concepts. 
 
Councilor Wylie said there might be a benefit of continuity of design throughout the City to help 
people become more familiar with the treatments. 
 
Mr. Boyatt said that has been discussed. Each context is a little different and presents its own 
challenges. The transit district has worked hard to address challenges as they go instead of having one 
size fits all. Bus Rapid Transit in general has had as many iterations as it has projects. The Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA) has broadened how they think of bus rapid transit.  
 
Councilor Wylie said she would like them to look at having continuity in our community.  
 
Councilor Moore asked where the current bus stops were located in relation to the proposed stops.  
 
Mr. Boyatt said he could get that information from LTD. 
 
Mr. Boyatt said staff is about halfway through the outreach.  Most people they have met with have 
been located in the two-way portion of Main Street.  Everyone appreciated the outreach, and people 
have been respectful. A lot of people have expressed interest in safety improvements, but not a lot of 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
May 16, 2016 
Page 4 
 
interest in transit improvements. Overall, the majority feel that changes to the roadway will have a 
negative impact on business or lower the value of their business. Many businesses in the corridor are 
located on substandard lots that aren’t deep enough for much on-site circulation. Staff believes this is 
the result in part of development that was done prior to zoning, community growth and the widening 
of Main Street in the early 1960’s. Where the businesses are constrained, any change could have a 
substantial impact on parking and the circulation of customers and services. He relayed some of the 
stories about how they get trucks and customers into their businesses. Many of these businesses back 
up to residential, so have no room to expand. As part of the planned next steps, there is a series of 
design solutions meetings where project and city engineers can look at ideas to reduce impacts on a 
site by site basis. At this point, there is very little, if any, support for raised medians, although left turn 
pockets are acceptable at intersections with U-turn capability. Business owners feel that if customers 
have to pass their destination to go back, it would deter customers. A median with freight traffic poses 
issues, as well as site access.  
 
Mr. Boyatt continued noting that most people feel the flashing beacons are working better as people 
getting used to them. Feedback was received that accidents are due to people making bad decisions, 
and safety improvements need to be weighed against economic interests. Most people do believe 
safety is a concern. Reaction to roundabouts has been mixed. There has been a strong message about 
avoiding impacts to the business corridors if roundabouts are designed. There is a lot of concern about 
business viability during construction. People aren’t choosing destinations that are impacted by 
construction.  
 
Mr. Boyatt said staff met twice with representatives from Springfield Utility Board (SUB) and have 
heard concerns from them as well regarding undergrounding power distribution and the costs 
associated.  They are aware how street trees need to work in proximity with power lines.  The water 
main line is about 60 years old, and has met its useful life. It could have another 10-20 years left. SUB 
knows they will have to replace that at some point and the cost will be high. Construction would 
accelerate SUB’s timeline to replace the water main. If raised medians are constructed, fire hydrants 
would need to be on both sides of streets. They are currently only on one side of the street so that 
would double their hydrants and laterals. Once a preliminary design is approved, staff from the City 
and SUB will look at the impacts and how to work together. 
 
Mr. Boyatt said staff will continue meeting with business and property owners and documented their 
feedback, and will a broader community outreach. The GT meets on May 26. The current schedule, 
which may change, includes going through the iterative design solutions process, running it by the 
businesses to try to come up with something that would work for most everybody, review it with the 
GT, and then come back to the Council. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she talked with Councilors Pishioneri and VanGordon this afternoon to get their 
thoughts. Councilor VanGordon’s was concerned with the routes on the list. He didn’t want anything 
between 96 and 106 feet. She attended a meeting this afternoon with Main Street businesses, and she 
is thinking 82 or less would be the goal, to make the impact as minimal as possible. They can look at 
landscape strips or other treatments to make the road narrower. The businesses don’t have room 
behind for parking. Both Councilor VanGordon and Pishioneri talked about the importance of business 
success. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she wants safety for everyone, including bicyclists and pedestrians. She would 
like to remove any hazards and get a speed reduction from ODOT. She heard that communication is 
lacking so that has to get better. She knows staff is trying to reach everyone.  They need to ensure in 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
May 16, 2016 
Page 5 
 
those communications that the City is not making any decisions until they are ready, and it is not 
based on current timelines.  She also asked that staff let the businesses know when LTD and the City 
Council meet. 
 
Mr. Boyatt said they were asking everyone to sign up for the email distribution list so they can be 
notified. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she would like them to ask on the form the ‘best way to contact you’ because 
not everyone has time to read their email every day. She would like to reconsider the enhanced transit 
option. She noted that the signalized options were removed because they took 100 feet or more. The 
GT was trying to keep it as narrow as possible. Roundabouts are very unpopular and affect ingress and 
egress of businesses. She asked Council to let her know if they supported looking at signalized 
options, and narrower options than the current proposals. 
 
Councilor Ralston said he feels this is a waste of time.  He had heard nothing but problems from 
everything discussed tonight. He is opposed to raised medians in the middle. They are expensive to 
build and maintain so he would not endorse those. He likes the no build and feels that 80 feet is 
perfectly functional. Over the years, development happened as it happened. There is no way he will 
support anything that takes additional land from anybody. He noted the issue with medians and 
additional fire hydrants. People are supportive of safety improvements, but not transit improvements. 
The majority of people use a car to get to work and other trips.  He does not support anything that 
slows down traffic. If they could add some more transit stops within the current width, he could 
support that, but not anything else. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said she is not supportive of raised medians because they create more problems 
than it solves. She wouldn’t mind having a couple of feet on either side to accommodate bicycles, but 
no wider. Safety is her number one concern. She thinks there are ways to enhance safety for non 
vehicle users that doesn’t cause access problems for the businesses.  They have been able to get to 
‘yes’ with business owners on the crosswalk, so she feels they can do the same with this process. 
 
Councilor Moore said she grew up in Portland and saw major growth.  She appreciates that those with 
businesses are concerned about the impacts. There are ways to solve the problems if we listen and 
work together.  She would love to see Main Street as a welcoming corridor as people come into our 
City, and that people could feel they could pull off to visit the businesses.  She feels lowering the 
speed limits would help. She likes roundabouts and noted how traffic moves through so much more 
easily. She realizes that is a difficult option due to the space involved. There are places roundabouts 
could be realized. This is the beginning step and the City is open to listening. She feels business 
owners want Main Street to be more inviting. She often has to turn around on Main Street to get to a 
business because she doesn’t see it in time, and she believes customers learn to adjust and will find 
businesses even if they have to turn back. She would like this project to be a solution to the problems 
on Main Street and deal with safety and access. 
 
Councilor Wylie said Councilor Woodrow has been doing a lot of work to improve safety on Main 
Street. The three goals she sees for Main Street are: improving transit, improving safety; and making 
sure the businesses stay successful.  She noted the project on 6th Street in Eugene and said she noticed 
that the businesses were open and accessible during construction due to appropriate signage, etc. There 
is now a beautiful street, bus route, and transition from what it was prior to the project. There will 
always be problems when making major changes, but she feels the lessons learned from 6th Street can 
be used here. Medians should not impede traffic or businesses. If they are for pedestrian safety or 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
May 16, 2016 
Page 6 
 
upgrading community, it is different, but we must be respectful of the trucks and traffic and 
businesses. It is a major highway in our city and we can either leave it as a sprawling highway or 
continue to work to make it part of our community.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said tonight is a chance for the Council to offer what they could support and provide 
direction. 
 
Councilor Ralston said there is overall opposition to medians so they should remove those. Individual 
islands for pedestrians getting off the bus could be acceptable as long as they didn’t run the length of 
the corridor. The way the businesses have been built, there is no room to take any property other than 
perhaps a couple of feet if it would make a difference. They need to focus on the reality of what they 
can support. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she suggested asking the GT to look at an enhanced corridor. Originally she 
wanted to get the buses out of the right lane so they weren’t impeding traffic. She wanted to move 
them off without moving them into businesses. Enhanced doesn’t do that, but she feels there should be 
a hybrid where they could move the buses out of traffic in certain places. They all agree they want 
safety improvements on Main Street and would like to have the speed limit reduced.  She wants it to 
be safe for pedestrians and bicyclists, and businesses have said the same. She would like to figure out 
a way to do that and stay within a certain footprint so it is not so impactful. She would like to include a 
signalized variation that isn’t so wide. Another thing she would like to do is to figure out how to make 
businesses more noticeable with better signage, or help with business access. The things important to 
her are how to make it safe, efficient and business friendly, and within that have a bus system that 
works for those that depend on transit to get back and forth to work or school. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi reiterated what the Council would like the GT to consider moving forward: a variation 
of the enhanced corridor option to improve safety, transit operations and through traffic. 
 
Mr. Boyatt said no changes had been drawn into the enhanced option shown in Attachment 3 until 
they could figure out where to pull stations off to the side, which would add 12 feet at those locations.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said they have pull out stations in other areas of the City, and they help with the 
efficiency of the corridor and safety of riders. She would like a signalized version of the EmX that is 
less than 100 feet by looking at the sidewalk, planter strip, etc. to see what is necessary. We don’t have 
to have a corridor that looks the same the entire length and can look different depending on what the 
businesses need. They want medians removed or look at other ways to use them. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the symbols on the charts in Attachment 3.  They were based on a 
rating system using certain criteria. The two columns on the right indicated which options were 
recommended by staff for advancement and which options were advanced by the Governance Team. 
 
Councilor Wylie said there are areas with more space for bus pullouts and street enhancement. 
 
Councilor Ralston said the 5 foot planter beds were a waste of money and not needed. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi reiterated Council direction about their thoughts on medians, keeping a smaller footprint, 
having a corridor with some enhancements where there is room and impacts were small, and 
signalized options with a smaller footprint. Staff will work to put together something to meet the 
Council’s objectives. 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
May 16, 2016 
Page 7 
 
 
Council would like to get a schedule of the GT meetings. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she would like staff to continue to work on communication and getting meeting 
notices out to people in the best way for each business (text, email, phone call, etc.) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 



City of Springfield 
Regular Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY MAY 16, 2016 
 

The City of Springfield Council met in regular session in the Council Chambers, 225 Fifth Street, 
Springfield, Oregon, on Monday May 16, 2016 at 7:00 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors Wylie, Moore, Ralston, and Woodrow. Also present 
were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney Mary Bridget 
Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
Councilors VanGordon and Pishioneri were absent (excused). 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Lundberg. 
 
SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT 
 
1. Mayor’s Recognition 
 

a. Kids to Parks Day Proclamation. 
 
Mayor Lundberg read from the proclamation and encouraged residents of Springfield to make 
time May 21st, 2016 to take the children in their lives to a neighborhood, state or national park.  

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Claims 
 

a. Approval of April 2016, Disbursements for Approval 
 
2. Minutes 
 

a. April 4, 2016 –  Regular Meeting 
b. April 11, 2016 – Work Session 
c. April 18, 2016 – Work Session 
d. April 18, 2016 – Regular Meeting 

 
3. Resolutions 
 
4. Ordinances 
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 6353 – AN ORDINANCE ADDING SECTIONS 7.1100-7.1104 TO 
CHAPTER 7 OF THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 
RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA BUSINESSES. 

 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 16, 2016 
Page 2 
 
5. Other Routine Matters 
 

a. Approval of the Liquor License Application for Steve’s Bkfst & More, Located at 117 S. 14th 
Street, Suite A, Springfield, Oregon. 

b. Approve or Reject a Motion to Award the Purchase of a Compact Track Loader and 
Attachments to Peterson Cat for $145,272. 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 4 FOR AND 0 AGAINST (2 ABSENT – VANGORDON AND PISHIONERI). 
 
ITEMS REMOVED 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request to speak cards are available at 

both entrances.  Please present cards to City Recorder.  Speakers may not 
yield their time to others. 

1. Sanipac Rate Increase Request. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-14 – A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD AMENDING THE MASTER SCHEDULE OF MISCELLANEOUS 
FEES AND CHARGES, RATES, PERMITS AND LICENSES IN ORDER TO AMEND THE 
AMOUNT OF THE GARBAGE AND REFUSE RATES. 

 
Anette Spickard, Development and Public Works Director, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Sanipac, the City’s franchise hauler for solid waste, has requested an increase of 1.79 percent for 
residential and commercial hauling rates.  This request is due to an increase approved by Lane County 
for the charges imposed for disposal of solid waste at the Short Mountain Landfill (tipping fee). 
 
In March 2016 the Board of County Commissioners determined that the rate imposed on solid waste 
haulers for disposal of waste at the Short Mountain landfill should be increased by $1.22 per ton to a 
new total of $76.77 per ton, effective July 1, 2016.  The County’s new fee structure also includes an 
automatic CPI increase to the tipping fee each year hereafter. 
 
Under section 16.4.b of the City’s franchise agreement with Sanipac, Sanipac is allowed to pass 
through the cost of county tipping fee increases to Springfield customers. 
 
The proposed increase represents an increase of $0.05 per month on the 21 and 35 gallon cart, $0.10 
per month for a 65 gallon cart, $0.15 per month for a 95 gallon cart, and $0.40 per month for a 1-Yard 
container. 
 
Sanipac last increased its rates in November 2014 and is permitted to request increases annually but is 
not asking for an increase this year beyond the cost of the new county tipping fee.  Sanipac has 
requested that the increase be effective July 1, 2016 to coincide with the effective date of the county’s 
fee.  
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared to speak. 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 16, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WYLIE TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2016-14.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 4 FOR AND 0 AGAINST (2 ABSENT – VANGORDON AND PISHIONERI). 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 

1. Mitch Hanan, State Farm Insurance, Springfield, OR. Mr. Hanan spoke regarding the 
considered change from Lane Transit District (LTD). The owner of an auto shop across the 
street from Mr. Hanan’s business, took over the business from his grandfather and has been 
running the business on his own, sometimes with the assistance of one other person. There is 
limited parking which is up against Main Street. If the 116 foot section goes into effect, it 
would take away all of his parking, and a median would prevent access to his property. There 
are many business owners with employees that will be impacted even with the 96 foot section. 
He appreciates the comments of the Council from the work session to keep the width to 82 
feet, and adding traffic lights. 
 

2. Joe Tokatly, Springfield, OR  Mr. Tokatly said he has a business on Main Street and has been 
in discussions with staff regarding the Main-McVay project. Once he started looking at the 
four options, he wanted to speak out against them. The options, ranging from 96 feet to 116 
feet with roundabouts, would devastate the City with the negative economic impact it would 
have on those businesses in terms of access, especially limiting the turning lane. Adding 
roundabouts will bog down traffic and there would be a loss of business. It is critical to look at 
the proposals very closely. He was very encouraged in the work session by the Mayor and 
Council remarks. They are realistic in keeping the right-of-way where it is, enhancing the 
avenue and making this a win-win for everyone from pedestrians, to cyclists, to transit users, 
and not just at the expense of business. The businesses pay for operating these systems. They 
need to be looking forward and addressing the issue. 

 
3. Dan Roche, Springfield Automotive, Springfield, OR  Mr. Roche noted that the Mayor 

attended his ribbon cutting at his business several years ago.  Mr. Roche said he grew up in 
Springfield, graduated from Thurston High School, and is now a business and property owner 
with six employees. His shop on Main Street would be seriously damaged by the widening of 
the road which would mean not being able to bring cars into his business. There are places 
along Main Street that could utilize a wider turnout for buses, but the lines proposed would 
hurt many businesses. He feels they can spruce up the sidewalk edge, keep the width at 80 
feet, keep the businesses intact and use stop light options. 

 
4. Todd Fortier, Todd’s Auto Body, Springfield, OR  Mr. Fortier said he has property for his 

business on both the north and south side of Main Street. He loves Springfield and is glad we 
are looking at making our town better; however, if Main Street is widened to 116 feet, his 
south shop would be closed down because he would have no parking. His 7 employees would 
lose their jobs. It wouldn’t affect his business on the north side as much, but would slow it 
down. They had already grown and are using all of the real estate they have. 

 
5. Jon Mermis, Springfield Automotive, Springfield, OR  Mr. Mermis is not a business owner, 

but an employee at Springfield Automotive on Main Street. He was born and raised in 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 16, 2016 
Page 4 
 

Springfield and feels this is a bad idea. Roundabouts would double the traffic in the corridor 
due to slowing down traffic. Taking the widened approach to 116 feet would kill a number of 
businesses, putting many employees out of work who live and work in this community. 

 
6. Sue Sierralupe, Springfield, OR   Ms. Sierralupe lives in Eugene and has a business in 

Springfield. She spoke regarding the ordinance recently passed penalizing people for helping 
people who are panhandling. She quoted from the Oregon Food Bank on causes for hunger in 
Oregon: long-term unemployment; persistent underemployment; and the high cost of food, 
gas, utilities and rent are forcing more and more people to seek emergency food. This is why 
they have, along with their allies, served $1,109,000 food boxes in Oregon for the third year in 
a row. The Department of Human Services has a budgetary shortfall of this year of $75M. It is 
clear who the first victims of this financial crisis will be. There is evidence that food insecurity 
contributes to obesity and subsequent health problems, particularly among women. 
Malnutrition can result in poor overall school achievement and compromised health 
throughout a child’s life. Undernourished seniors can show symptoms of dementia and are 
more prone to falling injuries. According to the USDA, in 2013 the average moderate food bill 
for a 19-50 year old many was $294.80 per month, $251.70 for a woman of the same age. On 
average a child uses $260.30 per month by the time they are 9 or 10 years old. The top amount 
of food stamps’ benefits a recipient gets each month is $120 per month. With increasing costs 
of utilities, rent and basic needs, our citizens are struggling to survive. She noted that Occupy 
Medical served food to 297 hungry visitors since the passage of the ordinance, up from 150-
200. As the number of hungry patients increases, the number of patients they see with 
conditions directly caused by malnutrition increases. She asked that they reconsider the anti-
kindness ordinance. 

 
7. Chris Bothman, Dairy Queen, Springfield, OR  Mr. Bothman said he lives in Eugene and 

noted the impacts on 6th Street with the new EmX line. Businesses have a lot of struggles 
already with so many other costs, and there is a direct difference between being open for 
business and actually doing business. The businesses on 6th and 7th are open, but not thriving. 
He just remodeled the Dairy Queen, but if construction starts up it could impact his business 
in a way that would mean he would have to lay people off. That is a concern of all of the 
businesses on Main Street. He said he reminds all of his employees that he doesn’t pay them, 
the customer pays them. The business owners are paying the City through property taxes, 
employee taxes and LTD taxes.  He thanked the Council for listening to the businesses today. 
He was encouraged by the meeting this afternoon and also by the discussion during the work 
session. He would like to propose seeing the corridor enhanced without tearing up the street 
and moving fire hydrants. The changes are exciting, but if the businesses suffer, employees 
suffer, and Main Street suffers. 

 
8. Dani Wright, McKenzie Feed, Springfield, OR  Ms. Wright said she recently moved her 

business a block and a half on Main Street so she could buy her own property. She had invited 
the Mayor, ODOT and others to attend the meeting this afternoon and everyone accepted the 
invitation. She hoped to bring people together as a group to provide a positive environment to 
address people’s concerns, anxiety and anger. She thanked them all for coming.  Some 
suggestions that came from today’s meeting included: using the bus route already in place; 
have a bus that goes from Gateway, along Highway 126 to the Thurston Station, where people 
can then ride to downtown; signalized intersections are preferred; lower speed limits; and no 
medians which make it difficult for large trucks to get in and out.  LTD took her entrance for a 
stop so she now leases access to Main Street on both sides of her business. The LTD pullouts 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 16, 2016 
Page 5 
 

are a good option, but they need to look at it long term.  Businesses she knows on West 6th in 
Eugene are losing $1000 a day. That type of reduction would mean a reduction in employees 
and impact her business.  Another suggestion on the pullouts is to give the property owner a 
tax option for taking a portion of the property. 

 
9. Dan Schmunk, Schmunk’s Tire Center, Springfield, OR  Mr. Schmunk said he was born and 

raised in Springfield and the business has been there for 62 years. He agreed with the previous 
comments. If an 8 foot section was taken, it could put him out of business. He’s not ready to 
retire yet, but wouldn’t be able to stay in business if they expanded the street. The turnouts 
could be a good idea and there could be room to do that. He is a proponent of roundabouts, but 
understands those that don’t like them. He is in favor of public safety. He noted the trees 
planted for beautification that he has to trim each year. He would prefer they weren’t there 
because he feels they are a safety hazard to his customers. He provided an example. He spoke 
regarding the fire hydrants. 

 
10. Kris McAlister, Springfield, OR  Mr. McAlister said he was here to speak about public safety 

and public transit. He feels Springfield has been underrepresented when it comes to LTD. It is 
sometimes difficult to get correct route information for Springfield when asking in Eugene. 
They could consider utilizing the system by using routes along Centennial instead of Main 
Street. Often the bus stops are a long distance from many of the apartments on Centennial, and 
are often 10 minutes late, so trying to coordinate timing is difficult.  He noted concerns with 
the ‘bus only’ lanes and how they can be an issue as well.  Placement of lights at the 
roundabouts is too close to the roundabout and often ineffective.  These are set by the City 
based on trends. He feels they need more public access to public transit for safety. There needs 
to be more conversations with everyone involved. 

 
11. Byron Davis, Auto Body Specialties, Springfield, OR  He went through the Eugene EmX 

build with his business on 7th Street. He was one of the businesses that lost over $200,000. His 
business was open, but they had no business and had to move that facility to 6th Street.  The 
Springfield store has 22 employees, being paid $50,000 to $90,000 per year, with vacation and 
retirement benefits. He represents them and will fight for them here in Springfield. He was 
born and raised in Springfield. He appreciates the meeting at the work session. His experience 
in Eugene was negative, being told one thing and then something else happening. The 
businesses were kept separate, unlike in Springfield where they have been brought together.  
So far, this process is not the same and he is proud to be from Springfield. If the Council 
represents businesses, they couldn’t consider the 116 foot option. The businesses support a lot 
of families, pay taxes, and donate to the community. Safety is very important, and he would 
like to see how the businesses could help solve the issues. 

 
12. Joe Bruns, Joe’s Truck and Trailer, Springfield ,OR  Mr. Bruns said he’s not sure how he 

could operate his business with a roundabout as well as losing 8 to 12 feet from his property. 
When he started his business he was working alone, and he now has 2 full time employees. 
They are making living wages, and have their own homes. This effects more than just the 
business owner, but impacts the employees. He doesn’t see how LTD can benefit 90% of the 
businesses it affects. The only businesses it might benefit are the large grocery and retail 
stores. He had to put a bike rack in to comply with minimum development standards and has 
never had anyone put their bike at that rack.  He is happy to hear the Mayor and Councilor’s 
ideas at the end of the work session. There can be solutions to make Main Street safe for 
pedestrians and bicycles. 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 16, 2016 
Page 6 
 
 

13. Susan Lee, Eugene, OR  Ms. Lee said she lives in Eugene, but owns property at 5095 Main 
Street in Springfield.  When she bought the store 20 years ago, it was messy and there was a 
lot of drug activity. After 6 months, they cleaned it up and don’t have any problems. If 
property is taken away, they would not be able to run the business. The business is a 
convenience store and has large trucks making deliveries nearly every day. She would also 
like to see the speed limit lowered. They need to think of the safety of the community, but also 
about the businesses. 

 
14. Joe Tokatly, Springfield, OR.  Mr. Tokatly spoke regarding the ordinance adopted by the 

Council (unlawful transfer). He commends the Council on the policy.  Our community has 
been dealing with the issue of homeless people because of the close proximity with the City of 
Eugene who has a different policy welcoming everybody to their community. That over floods 
our community, meaning we have to enact laws to deal with it. It is not a policy of dislike and 
hatred, but is a very intelligent policy. 

 
COUNCIL RESPONSE 
 
CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS 
 
BIDS 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
1. Committee Appointments 
 
2. Business from Council 
 

a. Committee Reports 
 

i. Councilor Moore said they had a great time Saturday morning at the Spring Cleanup. 
It was a great opportunity to meet and talk with citizens. She appreciated all of the 
volunteers and the City for putting on this event. It is a very positive thing we do in 
the City. 

 
ii. Mayor Lundberg said she also had a good time, although was completely soaked! 

Everyone loves Spring Cleanup and they are all in a good mood. She also thanked 
everyone at the City who helped make this event possible. 

 
b. Other Business 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 16, 2016 
Page 7 
 
The meeting was adjourned 7:49 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder Amy Sowa 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
City Recorder 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 6/6/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Matthew Ruettgers 

Development and Public 
Works 

 Staff Phone No: 541-736-1035 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Maintain and Improve 
Infrastructure and 
Facilities 

 
ITEM TITLE: ACCEPTANCE OF PROJECT P31025; PINEHURST PHASE 1 PUBLIC 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, S 55TH ST. 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Adopt or reject the following resolution:   
 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT CITY PROJECT P31025; PINEHURST PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (PIP), S 55TH ST 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The work on this project has been completed by the Developer, Hayden Homes. 
Final inspection, paperwork, and approval has been completed by City Staff and the 
developer’s consulting engineers.  The Project is now ready for formal City Council 
acceptance.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Resolution 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Pinehurst Phase 1 is a single family home subdivision constructed by Hayden 
Homes.  The subdivision is constructed on a large vacant lot North of Mt Vernon 
Road and west of the Royal Ridge subdivision (South 55th Place).    The subdivision 
Public Improvement Project (PIP) construction consists of the following items: 
 
• Construction of approximately 1,899 feet of new sanitary sewer. 
• Construction of approximately 1,470 feet of new storm drain. 
• Construction of 1,628 feet of new roadways with setback sidewalks, street 

trees and ADA facilities. 
• Cleaning and rehabilitation of an existing pedestrian path under the 

Bonneville Power Administration transmission lines. 
• Construction of a raised pedestrian crossing connecting the pedestrian path 

across the extension of Ivy St. 
• Construction of a stormwater treatment and detention pond and stormwater 

quality manhole. 
• Installation of 7 street lights. 

 
All construction work and city staff time was paid for by the developer, Hayden 
Homes with engineering services provided by Matt Lewis of Cardno. 
 
All work done under this permit project has been completed and inspected by the 
City Engineer or their designee and found to be satisfactory.  We do not have a final 
construction cost for this project, as it was privately engineered, built and financed.  
There is no financial impact to the City other than the typical future maintenance 
responsibilities for public infrastructure. 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  _______ 
 

Acceptance 
 
 

 WHEREAS, work on the improvement described below has been fully completed and 
has been duly inspected by the City Engineer of the City of Springfield: 
 
 P31025; Pinehurst Phase 1 Public Improvement Project, S 55th St. 
 
 WHEREAS, said work was found to be in conformance with the terms of the Public 
Improvement Permit and plans submitted by the Engineer of Record and approved by the City 
Engineer, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the City Engineer that this Public Improvement 
Project be accepted and permanently included in the improvement maintenance program of the 
City of Springfield. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 

1) The Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby accept for future 
maintenance the above-described project and accepts said improvement from the 
Developer involved. 

 
2) This resolution shall take effect upon adoption by the Council and approval by the 

Mayor. 
 

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of Springfield, Oregon, this 6th day of June, 
2016. 
 

Adopted by a vote of ____ for and ____ against. 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
City Recorder 
 
 
 

REVIEWED & APPROVED AS 
TO FORM 
             Joseph J. Leahy         
DATE:  February 3, 2016         
OFFICE OF CITY ATTORNEY 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 1



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 6/6/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Sophia Seban – DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 726-2295 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR A CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP 

LUCKY WHEEL INC, DBA: SPRING GARDEN SEAFOOD RESTAURANT. 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for Spring Garden Seafood 
Restaurant is for a restaurant style location, located at 215 Main Street, Springfield, 
Oregon 97477. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The owners of Lucky Wheel, INC have requested the City Council to endorse its 
OLCC Liquor License Application. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1.  OLCC Liquor License Application 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The license endorsement for Lucky Wheel, Inc. and DBA: Spring Garden Seafood 
Restaurant is for a Change of Ownership with Limited On-Premises Sales and 
applying as a Corporation with a 90-Day Authority.  The new license application 
has been reviewed and approved by the appropriate City Departments. 
 

 









 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 6/6/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Sophia Seban – DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 726-2295 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR ADDITIONAL PRIVILEGES FOR 

HICKAM INVESTMENTS, INC., DBA: PRIME TIME SPORTS BAR & GRILL. 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for Prime Time Sports Bar & 
Grill is for an entertainment, restaurant style location, located at 1360 Mohawk 
Blvd, Springfield, Oregon 97477. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The owner of Hickman Investments, INC has requested the City Council to endorse 
its OLCC Liquor License Application. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1.  OLCC Liquor License Application 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The license endorsement for Hickman Investments, INC., DBA: Prime Time Sports 
Bar & Grill is for Additional Privileges with Limited On-Premises Sales; Off-
Premises Sales and applying as a Corporation.  The new license application has 
been reviewed and approved by the appropriate City Departments. 
 

 







 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 6/6/2016 
 Meeting Type: Work Session/Reg. Mtg 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Greta Utecht, Human 

Resources Director 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3787 
 Estimated Time: 30 minutes/Consent 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and 
Innovative Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE: CITY MANAGER COMPENSATION 2016 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Work Session: Discuss City Manager Compensation 
Regular Meeting: Move to approve adjusting the salary of the City Manager by 3% 
effective November 1, 2015. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

According to City Manager Gino Grimaldi’s employment contract, each February 
the City’s Human Resources Department will average the percentages from four 
different index sources to determine what, if any, amount of salary or cost of living 
adjustment to recommend to the City Council.  In addition, Human Resources staff 
completed a survey of comparable agencies. Results of the survey and the average 
of the indices are attached and reflect the justification for a 3% salary adjustment 
for Mr. Grimaldi. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Council Briefing Memorandum of May 27, 2016. 
2. City Manager Compensation Survey April 2016 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The following table lists the indices used, and their overall average. 
 
 

Currently, Mr. Grimaldi’s total compensation package is 3.70% below the average 
of comparable agencies with no geographic differential calculations applied.  
(Geographic differential factors help us compare the cost of labor in another 
community or region and have been used in other recent market surveys, 
specifically those prepared for non-Union, SEIU, IAFF and AFSCME employee 
groups.)  
When the geographic differential factors are applied, Mr. Grimaldi’s total 
compensation package is approximately .94% below average.  If a 3.0% adjustment 
were made to his salary, it would result in a base salary of $157,959 and an overall 
increase of $5,260.  Based on the attached compensation survey, that adjustment 
would put his total compensation approximately .78% below average without 
geographic factoring and 1.90% above average with the geographic factors applied.  
Assuming any adjustment would be implemented June 1, retroactive costs to 
November 1 2014 would be $2,718 for a 3% adjustment.   
The City Manager recently received a very favorable performance review from the 
City Council and from those who report directly to him.  In addition, he has re-
structured the City Manager’s Office to better reflect and respond to the Council’s 
goals.  As a result of the reorganization, Mr. Grimaldi will have more direct reports, 
and more direct oversight of City-wide operations.  Given the financial analysis, 
combined with his excellent performance evaluation and greater work load 
expectations, staff recommends a 3% salary increase. 

Portland-Salem CPI-W for 2015 1.1 
Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment 2015 0 

Public Administrators National Index 2015 3.1 
Western & Oregon Officers/Executives 2015 3.2 

Average: 2.02% 

 



 

M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 5/31/2016  

To: Mayor and City Council COUNCIL 

From: Greta Utecht, Human Resources Director BRIEFING 

Subject: City Manager Compensation 2016 MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE:  According to City Manager Gino Grimaldi’s employment contract, each February the 
City’s Human Resources Department will average the percentages from four different index 
sources to determine what, if any, amount of salary or cost of living adjustment to recommend to 
the City Council.  In addition, Human Resources staff completed a survey of comparable 
agencies.  In light of this information, Human Resources staff proposes that Mr. Grimaldi be 
granted a 3% salary adjustment.   

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Provide Financially Responsible and Innovative Government Services 
Prior to 2012 when Mr. Grimaldi’s contract was changed, his salary was indexed to increases 
received by other employees.  By removing that link, the Council is able to evaluate the City 
Manager’s compensation package independently and not be influenced by what has been 
bargained or agreed to for other employees. 
BACKGROUND:   According to Gino Grimaldi’s employment contract, each February the 
City’s Human Resources Department will average the percentages from four different index 
sources to determine what, if any, amount of salary or cost of living adjustment to recommend to 
the City Council.   
 
The four indices that will be averaged are:  The CPI-W index for Portland-Salem; the cost of 
living index for Social Security benefits, the national salary index for public administrators and 
the Western Region officer/exempt executive index.  The following table lists those indices, and 
the overall average. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment 1 reflects the most recent compensation survey of other City Managers in similar 
sized Oregon cities and those agencies with which we compete for employees.   
 
Mr. Grimaldi’s performance evaluation is normally completed in November but due to the use 
of a different format, was not completed until April 2016.  Moving forward, the Council will 
perform Mr. Grimaldi’s evaluation in November, and his compensation will be reviewed the 
following February, in order to have the results from the above indices.  Any adjustments to his 
compensation will be retroactive to the preceding November.  In addition, any compensation 
adjustment will take his review and success in meeting Council goals into account. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi received a 2% salary adjustment for 2015.    

Portland-Salem CPI-W for 2014 1.1 
Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment 2014 0 

Public Administrators National Index 2014 3.1 
Western & Oregon Officers/Executives 2014 3.2 

Average: 2.02% 

Attachment 1 
Page 1 of 2 

 



   

 
Currently, Mr. Grimaldi’s total compensation package is 3.70% below the average of 
comparable agencies with no geographic differential calculations applied.  (Geographic 
differential factors help us compare the cost of labor in another community or region and have 
been used in other recent market surveys, specifically those prepared for non-Union, SEIU, 
IAFF and AFSCME employee groups.)  
When the geographic differential factors are applied, Mr. Grimaldi’s total compensation package 
is approximately .94% below average.  If a 3.0% adjustment were made to his salary, it would 
result in a base salary of $157,959 and an overall increase of $5,260.  Based on the attached 
compensation survey, that adjustment would put his total compensation approximately .78% 
below average without geographic factoring and 1.90% above average with the geographic 
factors applied.  Assuming any adjustment would be implemented June 1, retroactive costs to 
November 1 2014 would be $2,718 for a 3% adjustment.   
The City Manager recently received a very favorable performance review from the City Council 
and from those who report directly to him.  In addition, he has re-structured the City Manager’s 
Office to better reflect and respond to the Council’s goals.  As a result of the reorganization, Mr. 
Grimaldi will have more direct reports, and more direct oversight of City-wide operations.  
Given the financial analysis, combined with his excellent performance evaluation and greater 
work load expectations, staff recommends a 3% salary increase. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends that the City Council review the attached 
information, and consider a 3% salary adjustment retroactive to November 1, 2015.   

 



Population Salary as 
of 4/2016

Deferred 
Comp

Auto/IT 
Stipend

Other
6% 

PERS 
Pickup

TOTAL W/O 
GEO DIFF

TOTAL W/ 
GEO DIFF NOTES

Albany 51,670 $137,796 $18,602 $8,268 $164,666 $165,868 13.5% to deferred comp, 6% PERS;  CM chooses NOT to take $300 @ month car allowance.

Bend 78,280 $171,314 $4,560 $10,279 $186,153 $185,725
The City covers the deductible, $2000/individual $4000/family. If deductible not met, unused 
amount deposited in VEBA. $300 per/month car allowance $80 per/month cell phone: severance 
inc to 9 mths with 9 mths COBRA

Corvallis 57,390 $153,000 $9,180 $540 $10,537 $173,257 $171,472 DC now at 6%; goes to 8% on 11/1/2016

Eugene 159,190 $208,457 $27,000 $6,480 $8,017 $12,896 $262,850 $261,799 $500 /month car allowance  $40 /month cell phone; Other= ability to cash out 2 wks vacation.  
OPSRP - No 6% on deferred comp or vacation pay out.

Grants Pass 36,465 $133,780 $0 $0 $4,013 $8,268 $146,061 $151,129 VEBA - $234/mo ($2,808 Annually), all leave to accrue w/out limitation.

Gresham 107,065 $157,080 $6,000 $1,571 $9,425 $174,076 $161,925 Waived VEBA - gets 1% of annual salary ($130.92/month) as an additional allowance added to 
his $500/month car allowance thru Payroll

Hillsboro 97,368 $193,995 $11,760 $5,400 $3,880 $0 $215,035 $200,348
$375 /month car allowance and $75/month cell phone stipend. VEBA is 2% of base salary (in 
"other" column).  Deferred Comp contribution instead of PERS.  Medical is Kaiser composite 
rates. 10 paid days of Administrative leave + 2 personal days to be used as manager deems 
appropriate during the calendar year.  NO PERS PICK UP. 

Oregon City 33,940 $172,104 $6,024 $1,250 $6,354.61 $11,144 $196,877 $184,513
Salary linked to other department director COLAs & has merit pay component.  Merit pay for 2015 
was $8605. Def comp = 3.5% w/ EE match. Full cost of smart phone & monthly svc. HRA VEBA 
=1%; cash out of up to 7 days vacation.

Lake 
Oswego 36,770 $159,869 $7,993 $4,800 $10,360 $183,022 $169,515 $400 car allowance, 5% match deferred comp

Lane 
County $167,482 $16,748 $7,560 $6,442 $11,894 $210,126 $209,285 $6,720 car allowance,$840 data plan stipend; sell back of 80 hrs vacation; 

Medford 75,920 $145,008 $2,755 $6,780 $5,075 $9,273 $168,891 $171,627 Sick leave above 960 hrs contributed at 50% to HRA-VEBA acct. Severance  provides one month 
of salary for each year of service, up to 6 months

Tigard 50,000 $166,687 $8,334 $4,000 $1,960 $0 $180,982 $168,621

No PERS:  City contributes 11% of salary/year to 401A Retirement -- not shown, EE contributes 
$0 it is not a match to show the 11% as PERS Pick-up, only if you put the ER and EE PERS 
contribution in would it be an appropriate comparison. $1000 provided for purchase of addit life 
ins or long term care or both, 5% City Paid Deferred Comp, $50/Mo into City Paid VEBA, cell 
30/mo

Average $163,881 $10,840 $4,306 $4,664 $11,021 $188,500 $183,486

Springfield 
Current $153,358 $6,134 $6,100 $5,898 $10,289 $181,780 $181,780 Includes 4% deferred comp,  $1300 tech stipend, $4800 mileage. Other $5898 for 80 hrs floating 

holiday that can be sold or used as vacation time each year.  Does not accrue.

-3.70% Below average with no geographic differential calculations 
-0.94% Below average with geographic differential calculations 

Attachment 2 

Page 1 of 2



OPTIONS

Springfield 
with 1% 
Increase

$154,883 $6,195 $6,100 $5,957 $10,388 $183,523 $183,523 Annual total cost of increase = $1743; retro cost to Nov 2015 = $1016

-2.71% Below average with no geographic differential calculations 
0.02% Above average with geographic differential calculations 

Springfield 
w/ 2% 

Increase
$156,416 $6,257 $6,100 $6,016 $10,487 $185,276 $185,276 Annual total cost of increase = $3496; retro cost to Nov 2015 = $2039

-1.74% Below average with no geographic differential calculations 
0.97% Above average with geographic differential calculations 

Springfield 
w/ 3% 

Increase
$157,959 $6,318 $6,100 $6,075 $10,587 $187,040 $187,040 Annual total cost of increase = $5259; retro cost to Nov 2015 = $3068

-0.78% Below average with no geographic differential calculations 
1.90% Above average with geographic differential calculations 

Attachment 2 

Page 2 of 2



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 6/6/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Greg Mott, DPW 

Brenda Jones, DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3774 
 Estimated Time: 5 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: PLANNING COMMISSION  APPOINTMENT 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Ratify the selection of Grace Brown and Tim Vohs to serve on the Planning 
Commission by official appointment on June 6, 2016 with said appointments 
expiring on June 6, 2020. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The seven-member Planning Commission has two vacancies: Mr. Tim Vohs has 
served one 4-year term and is eligible for one additional four-year term.  Steve Moe 
has served two 4-year terms and is not eligible for another term.    
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Applications for Grace Brown and Tim Vohs 
2. Planning Commission Roster   

 
DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The City received three applications for two vacancies during a 4-week recruitment 
period.  One applicant pulled their application prior to interviews.  At the May 23, 
2016 Work Session the Council interviewed the remaining two candidates.  Formal 
appointment is requested.  
 
 
 
  
 
  
 

 



Attachment 1, Page 1 of 10Attachment 1, Page 1 of 10



Attachment 1, Page 2 of 10Attachment 1, Page 2 of 10



Attachment 1, Page 3 of 10Attachment 1, Page 3 of 10



Attachment 1, Page 4 of 10Attachment 1, Page 4 of 10



Attachment 1, Page 5 of 10Attachment 1, Page 5 of 10



Attachment 1, Page 6 of 10Attachment 1, Page 6 of 10



Attachment 1, Page 7 of 10Attachment 1, Page 7 of 10



Attachment 1, Page 8 of 10Attachment 1, Page 8 of 10



Attachment 1, Page 9 of 10Attachment 1, Page 9 of 10



Attachment 1, Page 10 of 10Attachment 1, Page 10 of 10



City of Springfield 
Planning Commission 

MAILING ADDRESS PHONE APPOINTMENT 
DATE 

RE-APPOINTMENT 
DATE 

EXPIRATION 
DATE 

Michael Koivula 
723 Crest Lane 
Springfield, Oregon 97477 
mkoivula@springfield-or.gov 
 
 

R: 541-746-1805 
 
 

3/16/2015  2/5/2019 

Gregory James Vice -Chair 
457 Mountaingate Drive 
Springfield, Oregon 97478 
gjames@springfield-or.gov 
 
 

B: 541-914-1116 
 
 

10/4/2010 10/15/2014 10/2/2018 

Sean Dunn 
525 10th Street 
Springfield, Oregon 97477 
sdunn@springfield-or.gov 
 

B:  541-632-3545 
 

3/16/2015  1/18/2019 

Andrew (Andy) Landen 
6721 Glacier Dr. 
Springfield, Oregon 9747 
alanden@springfield-or.gov 
 

R:  541-222-6706 
 
 

4/20/2015  7/31/2018 

Nick J. Nelson Chair 
1863 Pioneer Parkway, suite 320 
Springfield, Oregon 97477 
nnelson@springfield-or.gov 
 
 

C:  541-852-9394 2/5/2013 Complete Bob 
Brew’s Term 

7/31/2013- Eligible 
for two additional 4-

year Terms 

7/31/2017 

Steve Moe 
3698 Franklin Boulevard 
PO Box 847 
Springfield, Oregon 97477 
smoe@springfield-or.gov 
 

C: 541-954-0175 
 

5/5/2008 7/23/2012 5/5/2016 

Tim Vohs 
3708 Cherokee Drive 
Springfield, Oregon 97478 
tvohs@springfield-or.gov 
 

R: 541-747-4325 
 
 

1/17/2012 Complete Frank 
Cross’s Term ending 

5/5/2012 & Serve 
one 4-year Term 

5/5/2016 

Note:  Springfield Planning Commissioners serve four-year terms.  Two members may reside outside the 
Springfield City limits and two members may be employed in real estate.  Representatives to the City 
Council are on a rotating basis 
     
CONTACTS:  SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORK  DEPARTMENT 
 
Anette Spickard,  Development and Public Works Department Director 541-726-3697 
Greg Mott, Development and Public Works Department, Current Development Manager, PC Liaison 541-726-3774 
Brenda Jones, Development and Public Works Department, Current Dev. Management Specialist 541-726-3610 

 
Edited 12/10/2015 BJones 

PUBLIC 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 1

mailto:mkoivula@springfield-or.gov
mailto:gjames@springfield-or.gov
mailto:sdunn@springfield-or.gov
mailto:alanden@springfield-or.gov
mailto:nnelson@springfield-or.gov
mailto:smoe@springfield-or.gov
mailto:t.vohs@me.com


AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 6/6/2016 
 Meeting Type: Work Session/Reg. Mtg 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Greg Mott, Phil 

Farrington/DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3774 
 Estimated Time: 15 Minutes/10 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
CITY COUNCIL  

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and Innovative 
Government Services 

 
ITEM TITLE:  INITIATE AMENDMENTS TO THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA 

PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES PLAN (PFSP), CONCURRENT AMENDMENT OF 
THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA GENERAL PLAN (METRO PLAN), 
AND AMENDMENTS TO THE GLENWOOD REFINEMENT PLAN AND SPRINGFIELD 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (SDC), FOR EWEB WATER INTAKE AND TREATMENT 
FACILITIES IN GLENWOOD.  

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 
 

Work session: Receive a presentation from staff on the proposed project. 
 
Regular session: Adopt/not adopt the following resolution: A RESOLUTION INITIATING 
AMENDMENTS TO  THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA PUBLIC 
FACILITIES AND SERVICES PLAN, CONCURRENT AMENDMENT OF THE EUGENE-
SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA GENERAL PLAN, AND AMENDMENTS TO 
THE GLENWOOD REFINEMENT PLAN AND SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE 
FOR AN EWEB WATER INTAKE, TREATMENT FACILITY AND RELATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE IN GLENWOOD 
  

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB) plans to construct a water intake, treatment facility 
and associated improvements in Glenwood that requires amendments to the PFSP Project list 
and Map, as adopted into the Metro Plan, and corresponding changes to the Glenwood 
Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code to allow the proposed water facilities at 
the locations selected by EWEB.   

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1:   Council Briefing Memorandum 
Attachment #2:   Resolution 
Attachment #3:   Eugene, Lane County support of Plan amendment Initiation  
Attachment #4:   Illustrative Map 

DISCUSSION: 
 

EWEB’s planned water intake and treatment facility requires several land use applications 
including annexation, Site Plan Review, and zoning overlay development approvals, in 
addition to all of the various amendments described above under Item Title and Issue 
Statement.  The PFSP amendments will add the new facilities to the project list and map as 
required by state law. Statewide Planning Goal 11 requires that local governments have a 
“public facilities plan” for areas within the UGB describing the water, wastewater, and 
stormwater facilities necessary to support the land uses designated in their comprehensive 
plan.  Public Facilities and Services Plan amendments must meet participation provisions of 
PFSP Chapter VI, as well as the approval criteria for Metro Plan and refinement plan 
amendments in SDC 5.14-100 and 5.6-100, respectively.  
 
Initiation of a PFSP and Metro Plan amendment is solely by formal action of one of the 
governing bodies subject to the Metro Plan.  As the property is located within Springfield’s 
urban growth boundary and the other associated land use applications, including annexation, 
will be processed by the City of Springfield, it is appropriate for the Springfield City Council 
to initiate these amendments.  
 
Initiation is undertaken without bias or commitment to a specific outcome, including any 
subsequent appeals.  EWEB will produce the required land use applications and supporting 
materials and has already conferred with the City of Eugene and Lane County about the 
proposed water intake and treatment facility.  After initiating and once the applications for 
Plan and Code amendments are submitted, review packages will be forwarded to the planning 
commissions of the respective agencies for recommendations to Springfield, Eugene and Lane 
County elected officials for a final decision on the PFSP and Metro Plan amendments. 
Springfield and Lane County elected officials are responsible for final decision on proposed 
Glenwood Refinement Plan and SDC amendments.   

 



Eugene Water & Electric Board Water Intake/Treatment Facilities  Project Page 1 of 2 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                                         City of Springfield  

Date: May 23, 2016  

To: Gino Grimaldi, City Manager COUNCIL 

From: Anette Spickard, Development & Public Works Director  
Greg Mott, Planning Manager 
Philip Farrington, AICP, Senior Planner 

BRIEFING 
MEMORANDUM 

Subject: Proposed Metropolitan Area General Plan (Metro Plan), 
Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP), Glenwood 
Refinement Plan (GRP), and Springfield Development 
Code amendments for a Eugene Water & Electric Board 
water intake and treatment facilities project 

 

ISSUE:   
Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB) plans to construct a water intake, treatment facility and 
associated improvements in Glenwood that requires amendments to the PFSP Project list and Map, 
as adopted into the Metro Plan, and corresponding changes to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and 
Springfield Development Code to allow the proposed water facilities at the locations selected by 
EWEB.   

BACKGROUND:   
Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB) proposes developing a new water source below the 
confluence of the Middle and Coast Forks of the Willamette River with an intake, treatment facility and 
associated water infrastructure located in Glenwood, within the Springfield Urban Growth Boundary.  
 
This project necessitates a Type III Metro Plan amendment to amend the Public Facilities and 
Services Plan (PFSP) and approval by all three local governing bodies. Certain aspects of this project 
also require amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan (GRP) and Springfield Development 
Code (SDC), both of which require approval by the Springfield City Council and Lane County Board of 
Commissioners.   
 
The Resolution enclosed with this packet, which will be presented for Council review and action at the 
June 6, 2016 regular session, will initiate the Plan amendment process as required by the Metro Plan, 
and will enable EWEB to file the required applications. Since Springfield has land use planning 
jurisdiction over the entire Glenwood area, the Springfield City Council is the appropriate  governing 
body  to initiate the required Metro Plan and PFSP amendments. However, the Springfield City 
Council is the only governing body that may initiate amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan 
and Springfield Development Code.  Council work session(s) and public hearing(s) before planning 
commissions and elected officials of other participating  jurisdictions will be scheduled for later this 
year to review each of the proposed amendments. 
 
Currently, EWEB’s only source of drinking water is an intake off the McKenzie River with a treatment 
facility near Hayden Bridge in Springfield. Having a single water source presents significant risks to 
EWEB residential, business, and institutional water consumers from potential service disruptions due 
to equipment failure, hazardous spills within the river, and natural disasters. EWEB acquired a water 
right to surface water on the Willamette River below the confluence of the Middle and Coast Forks in 
an effort to diversify its water supply. EWEB has also acquired property for a river intake, and is 
proceeding to acquire additional property needed for the water treatment filtration plant and 
associated facilities (e.g., pumps, lab, transmission lines, etc). 
 
The facilities proposed are required to be included in the project lists and maps in the PFSP, which 
are adopted as part of the Metro Plan, but are physically located in the PFSP. Modifications to the 
GRP and to the Code are required to accommodate “high impact public utility facilities,” which are not 
currently allowed within the GRP’s Subarea D or the Employment Mixed Use zoning district.    
Subsequent to the Plan and Code amendments, the City will process applications by EWEB for 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 2



Eugene Water & Electric Board Water Intake/Treatment Facilities  Project Page 2 of 2 

Annexation, Site Plan Review, and several associated land use applications (i.e., Willamette 
Greenway Overlay District, Floodplain Development Overlay, Hillside Development Overlay District, 
and Tree Felling Permit). 
 
EWEB hopes to complete preliminary design and secure required plan amendments in 2016, with 
further permitting and final design extending between 2017-2019, construction between 2019-2021, 
and having the plant operational by 2021-2022. 
 

DISCUSSION:   
Policy 6.b.iii of the Metro Plan (p.IV-3) establishes that amendments to a “regional public facilities 
plan” is a Type III amendment to the Metro Plan. The Metro Plan’s Public Faciliites and Services 
Element states: “The project lists and maps in the Public Facilities and Services Plan are adopted as 
part of the Metro Plan.” (p. III-G-2).  When the PFSP was in development, the cities and the two 
principal water providers agreed that the information contained on the project lists and maps would  
include source, reservoirs, pump stations, and primary distribution systems, consistent with 
requirements in applicable Oregon Administrative Rules. Primary distribution systems are 
transmission lines 12 inches or larger for Springfield Utility Board (SUB) and 24 inches or larger for 
EWEB. (Chapter V, Glossary, at 37(a), page V-4, Metro Plan)   
 
Since the proposed EWEB project is not included among the PFSP’s table and map of proposed 
water projects, as required by the Metro Plan and state law, the PFSP amendment and allied Metro 
Plan amendment is warranted and necessary. 
 
SDC 5.14-125 refers to initiation of Metro Plan amendments. Subection C. allows Type III Metro Plan 
amendments to be “initiated at any time by Springfield, Eugene or Lane County.”  
 
The proposed location of the water intake and treatment facilities is within Subarea D of the GRP, 
adopted by the City and Lane County as a neighborhood refinement to the Metro Plan in 2012. 
Subsequently, the Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan District was incorporated into the Code as 
SDC 3.4-200. While the GRP and Code allow certain “low impact public utility facilities,” there is no 
provision for “high impact public utility facilities” within the subject site’s Employment Mixed Use 
zoning district. SDC 6.1-110 defines “high impact public utility facilities” as including the size and type 
of water facilities proposed by EWEB. Therefore, amendments to certain GRP text and to the table for 
allowed uses in the SDC for the Glenwood Plan District are warranted and necessary. 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Adoption of the attached Resolution at the Springfield City Council’s June 6, 2016 regular session is 
recommended based on the explanations provided under the Issue and Discussion sections of this 
memorandum. However, in the event the Council chooses not to initiate the Metro Plan and PFSP 
amendments, the City of Eugene or Lane County may proceed with this action as specified in the 
Metro Plan.   
Initation of the amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code is 
included in the Resolution and recommended based on the explanations provided under the Issue 
and Discussion sections of this memorandum.  

 

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-__ 
Page 1 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING AMENDMENTS TO THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA 
PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES PLAN, CONCURRENT AMENDMENT OF THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD 
METROPOLITAN AREA GENERAL PLAN, AND AMENDMENTS TO THE GLENWOOD REFINEMENT PLAN 
AND SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE FOR AN EWEB WATER INTAKE, TREATMENT FACILITY AND 

RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE IN GLENWOOD 
 

WHEREAS:  the Eugene Water and Electric Board (EWEB) intends to develop a water intake, pump 
station, storage facility, treatment facility with a source of supply from the Willamette River, 
transmission lines, and associated infrastructure facilities, in order to build redundancy into its water 
system; and  
 
WHEREAS: EWEB plans to locate these facilities in Glenwood, within the Springfield Urban Growth 
Boundary, and with the intake downstream of the confluence of the Middle and Coast Forks of the 
Willamette River; and  
 
WHEREAS: EWEB has met with planning staff of the City to understand:  what development standards 
will apply; what land uses regulations will apply; what changes may be needed to land use plans and 
regulations; the relevant procedures and standards for annexation; and other matters; and  
 
WHEREAS:  a facility of this magnitude should be shown in the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area 
Public Facilities and Services Plan (Public Facilities and Services Plan) tables and maps as required by 
applicable Oregon Administrative Rules; and  
 
WHEREAS:  an amendment to the Public Facilities and Services Plan is a “Type III” amendment to the 
Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan (Metro Plan), as described in Chapter IV of the 
Metro Plan, requiring approval by all three governing bodies; and  
 
WHEREAS: Chapter IV of the Metro Plan also provides a Type III amendment to the Public Facilities and 
Services Plan may be amended by any one of the governing bodies subject to the Metro Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS: Aspects of the project also require amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan (GRP) and 
Springfield Development Code (SDC) to accommodate high impact public utility facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS: SDC 5.6-105.B allows amendments to the GRP and the SDC text to also be initiated by the 
City Council;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City Council consents to EWEB filing with the City a Type III post-acknowledgment plan 
amendment application to amend the Metro Plan and the Public Facilities and Services Plan 
to include its proposed intake and treatment facilities; and  
 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-__ 
Page 2 

2. The City Council consents to EWEB filing with the City applications to amend the Glenwood 
Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code to accommodate high impact public 
utility facilities; and  

 
3. The City Council understands that EWEB will be responsible, as the applicant, for preparing 

application materials supporting these amendments;  any associated land use applications 
as may be required; all accompanying fees; and  

4.  The City Council hereby initiates processes allowing amendments to the Metro Plan and the 
Public Facilities and Services Plan, and to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and Springfield 
Development Code; however, by authorizing the initiation of these amendments, the City is 
not hereby making a decision with respect to the merits of the applications. 

 
Adopted by the Council of the City Springfield, Oregon, by a vote of ___ for and ___ against, this __ day 
of ________, 2016. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________   _______________________________ 
Amy Sowa      Mayor 
City Recorder 
 
 

Attachment 2, Page 2 of 2



Attachment 3, Page 1 of 2



Attachment 3, Page 2 of 2



I-5

FR
AN

KL
IN

 B
LV

D

Proposed EWEB
Treatment Plant Site

Proposed EWEB Pipeline
Intake to Treatment Plant

¯

Proposed EWEB Transmission Main to
Knickerbocker Bridge

EWEB Intake Site

Attachment 4, Page 1 of 1


	2016-06-06 Council Agenda
	WORK SESSION
	Item 1 City Manager Compensation 2016
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memorandum of May 27, 2016
	ATT2 - City Manager Compensation Survey April 2016

	Item 2 Initiate Amendments to the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP), Concurrent Amendment of the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan (Metro Plan), and Amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code (SDC), for EWEB Water Intake and Treatment Facilities in Glenwood.
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memorandum
	ATT2 - Resolution
	ATT3 - Eugene, Lane County support of Plan Amendment Inititiation
	ATT4 - Illustrative Map

	REGULAR MEETING
	SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT
	Item 1 Mayor's Recognition
	1a. Volunteers in Medicine Proclamation

	Item 2 Minutes
	2a. April 25, 2016 - Work Session
	2b. May 2, 2016 - Regular Meeting
	2c. May 9, 2016 - Work Session
	2d. May 16. 2016 - Work Session
	2e. May 16, 2016 - Regular Meeting

	Item 3 Resolutions
	3a. Acceptance of Project P31025; Pinehurst Phase 1 Public Improvement Project, S 55th Street
	ATT1 - Resolution


	Item 5 Other Routine Matters
	5a. Liquor License Application for a Change of Ownership Lucky Wheel Inc, DBA: Spring Garden Seafood Restaurant
	ATT1 - OLCC Liquor License Application

	5b. Liquor License Application for Additional Privileges for Hickman Investments, Inc. DBA: Prime Time Sports Bar & Grill
	ATT1 - OLCC Liquor License Application

	5c. City Manager Compensation 2016
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memorandum of May 27, 2016
	ATT2 - City Manager Compensation Survey April 2016


	BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL
	Item 1 Planning Commission Appointment
	ATT1 - Applications for Grace Brown and Tim Vohs
	ATT2 - Planning Commission Roster

	BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER
	Item 1 Initiate Amendments to the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP), Concurrent Amendment of the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan (Metro Plan), and Amendments to the Glenwood Refinement Plan and Springfield Development Code (SDC), for EWEB Water Intake and Treatment Facilities in Glenwood.
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memorandum
	ATT2 - Resolution
	ATT3 - Eugene, Lane County support of Plan Amendment Inititiation
	ATT4 - Illustrative Map




